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VISION AND MISSION

VISION

Is to achieve and then remain as the most progressive and profitable
Company offering a wide range of quality products and service provider

in terms of industry standards and stakeholders interest.

MISSION

The Company shall achieve its mission through a continuous process of

having sourced, developed, implemented and managed the best leading

edge technology, industry best practice, human resource and innovative
of superior products, performance and service quality that fully meet
the needs of our customers, better returns to our stakeholders and a

better quality of life to the employees.



International Knitwear Limited
| REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN

It is my privilege to present the Chairman’s Review for the financial year ended June 30, 2025, in
compliance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019. This review reflects our continued commitment to
transparency, sound governance, and long-term strategic direction.

During the year, our Company demonstrated resilience and foresight in navigating a challenging
economic environment. We achieved a record-high turnover, underscoring our ability to adapt
and compete effectively in a dynamic market. However, rising energy costs and persistent
inflation exerted significant pressure on profit margins, highlighting the importance of prudent
cost management and operational efficiency.

QOur dedication to the highest standards of governance remains at the core of our business. The
Board of Directors upholds transparency, accountability, and integrity while ensuring adherence
to best practices in governance. Robust systems for risk management, internal controls, and
regulatory compliance remain firmly in place, reinforcing stakeholder confidence and
strengthening our corporate reputation.

Throughout the fiscal year 2024-25, the Board convened four meetings, including sessions of its
audit committee, to ensure effective oversight of business performance and sub-committee
activities. In line with our governance framework, the Board also conducted its annual self-
evaluation for 2024-25, which produced satisfactory results. This exercise is critical to assessing
effectiveness and identifying areas for further improvement.

Our Board comprises a diverse mix of independent and non-executive directors, each
contributing expertise and perspective to informed decision-making. This diversity of skills and
experience ensures that the Company remains well-positioned to achieve its objectives and
create sustainable value.

In conclusion, | would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to our shareholders, employees,
and business partners for their trust and dedication. With your support, we will continue to
pursue our strategic priorities, strengthen our foundations, and progress with confidence and
integrity.

KHALID JAMIL SIDDIQI

Karachi Chairman
September 29,2025
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors of International Knitwear Limited takes pleasure in presenting this report
together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Financial Performance at a Glance

Operating Results 2025 2024 Increase/(Decrease)
Rupees Rupees Percentage

Net sales 1,210,573,713 850,505,029 42.33%

Gross profit 106,356,166 81,397,783 30.66%

Profit before income taxes and final 49,297,557 26,780,385 84.08%

taxes

Profit after income tax 30,858,562 11,043,540 179.42%

Net Earnings per share 3.19 1.14 179.82%

Financial Highlights for the Year Ended June 30, 2025

+ Net Sales reached Rs. 1.21 billion, compared to Rs. 850.50 million in the same period last year
(SPLY), reflecting an increase of Rs. 360.07 million (42.33%).

e Gross Profit stood at Rs. 106.35 million, up from Rs. 81.39 million in the previous year.

s Profit Before Tax amounted to Rs. 49.29 million, compared to Rs. 26.78 million in the
corresponding period last year.

e Profit After Tax rose to Rs. 30.85 million, against Rs. 11,04 million in SPLY.

e Earnings Per Share (EPS) increased to Rs. 3.19, compared to Rs. 1.14 in the previous year.

Business Overview

During the year under review, the Company delivered an outstanding financial performance, with net
turnover reaching Rs. 1.21 billion, compared to Rs. 850.50 million in the corresponding period,
reflecting robust growth of 42.33%. This increase was primarily driven by a substantial rise in sales
volumes.

Despite challenges such as pricing pressures in export markets, political uncertainty, high financing
costs, and volatile utility prices, the Company successfully expanded order volumes and fully utilised
its production capacity during FY24-25. Export revenue rose by 13.74%, from Rs. 487.63 million in the
same period last year to Rs. 556.66 million. Local sales showed even stronger growth, increasing by
80.20%, from Rs. 362.87 million to Rs. 653.91 million during FY25.

This strong performance lifted net sales to Rs. 1.21 billion, up 42.33% year-on-year, demonstrating
the effectiveness of management’s strategic initiatives, including timely investments and an optimal
balance between export and domestic market opportunities.
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However, the sales growth was partially offset by margin pressures. Gross, operating, and net
profitability were impacted by higher costs, particularly elevated freight expenses of Rs. 21.30 million
incurred to fulfil an export order shipped via air to meet buyer commitments. Consequently, the
gross margin declined to 8.78% compared to 9.57% in the corresponding period. On the financial
side, the Company successfully contained its finance costs, which decreased as a percentage of sales
compared to last year, mainly due to the reduction in the policy rate.

As a result, profit after tax increased significantly, reaching Rs. 30.85 million compared to Rs. 11.04
million in the corresponding period.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share after taxation were Rs. 3.19 as compared to Rs. 1.14 in last year's earnings for the
shareholders.

Investment

The Company geherates a significant portion of its investment income from sustainable sources such
as dividends and capital gains, ensuring a stable revenue stream. Its investment portfolio remains
well-diversified across multiple sectors, with a primary emphasis on blue-chip stocks offering
attractive dividend yields, bonus distributions, and strong growth prospects. In addition, the portfolio
maintains a prudent balance between fixed-income securities and equities, optimising returns while
managing risk. This approach reinforces the Company's profitability by generating a significant
secondary income stream.

During the year, other income, primarily comprising dividend income, stood at Rs. 7.65 million,
compared to Rs. 8.49 million in the corresponding period. Gains on disposal of investments rose to
Rs. 2.72 million, from Rs. 0.36 million in the previous year.

Capital Expenditure

The Company has consistently maintained a strong track record of investing in new facilities,
equipment, and technologies to support market expansion and the development of new product
lines. During the year, capital expenditure amounted to Rs. 35.97 million, compared to Rs. 22.76
million in the previous year, reflecting an increase of Rs. 13.21 million (58.04%).

Management remains committed to enhancing operational capabilities as a cornerstone of long-term
profitability. As part of this approach, the Company has prioritised investments in renewable energy
to counter rising energy costs. In line with this strategy, a solar power project with a rated capacity of
250 KW was successfully commissioned during the year.

This transition to renewable energy is expected not only to mitigate the financial impact of escalating
energy costs but also to reinforce the Company’s commitment to sustainability and responsible
business practices.

Dividend
Considering our strategic investments, the business's future working capital needs, and the Company’s

cash-generating capability, the Board of Directors is pleased to recommend a final cash dividend of 10%,
equivalentto PKR. 1.0 per share, forthe year ended June 30, 2025.
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Future Outlook

The Company is positioned for sustainable profit growth amid a promising domestic economic
landscape of receding inflation and monetary easing. This positive outlook is offset by notable
challenges, including climate volatility linked to global warming. Events such as monsoon floods can
impact supply chains, raw material costs, and local consumer demand. On the international front,
trade continues to face multiple challenges, including subdued global demand and geopolitical
tensions. In this complex environment, a key focus will be on leveraging diversified operations and
robust risk management to mitigate supply-side disruptions and navigate fluctuations in local
demand, thereby securing profitability amid both global and domestic uncertainties.

Looking ahead, the Board of Directors and management are committed to further strengthening
financial performance through cost efficiencies and operational improvements. These initiatives aim
to maximize shareholder returns and reinforce stakeholder confidence.

Material Changes

There have been no material changes and no significant commitments made after the end of the
financial year up to the date of this report, which could affect the Company’s financial position.

Corporate Environment, Health & Social Responsibility

We are firmly committed to maintaining the highest standards of health, safety, and environment
(HSE) to protect our employees and the communities where we operate. Our foremost priority is the
continuous enhancement of safety measures across production, storage, delivery, and material
handling. The Company also remains dedicated to environmental stewardship and sustainability in
every aspect of its operations.

Materiality Approach

The determination of materiality levels is inherently subjective, with methodologies differing across
organisations. At our Company, authorisation of transactions and delegation of powers are
established through formal, documented procedures. The Company operates under a Board-
approved materiality policy, which is reviewed annually to ensure ongoing compliance, effectiveness,
and relevance.

Corporate and Fi ial Reporting Fr k
In compliance with the provisions of the listing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange, the Board
members are pleased to place the following statements on record:

The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows, and changes in equity;

@ The Company maintains proper books of accounts;

® The Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board;

@ Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

® International Financial Reporting dards, as licable in v, are foll, din the
preparation of financial statements.

e The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored;

® There are no doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

e There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations.

e A summary of key operational and financial data for the last six years is annexed in this annual
report.

® Information about taxes and levies is given in the notes to and forming part of financial
statements.

@ The valuation of investment made by the staff retirement Provident Fund (Audited) as at June
30, 2025 was Rs. 9,738,626.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

In line with the requirements of the Regulations, the Company encourages representation of
independent and non-executive directors, as well as gender diversity on its Board. The current
composition of the Board is as follows:

TOTAL NUMBER OF DIRECTORS:
(a) Male: 6
(b) Female: 1

COMPOSITION:

i Independent Directors: 3
ii. Non-Executive Directors: 2
iii. Executive Directors: 2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1 Khalid Jamil Siddiqi Chairman Independent

2  Naeem Shafi Chief Executive Officer Executive

3 Waseem Shafi Directar Non-Executive

4 Javed Khan Director Executive

5 Abdullah Ahsan Saleem Director Independent

6 Saleha Majid Directar Independent

7 Muhammad Shafi Director Non-Executive
COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

1 Abdullah Ahsan Saleem Chairman

2 Khalid Jamil Siddigi Member

3 Saleha Majid Member

COMPOSITION OF HR & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

1 Khalid Jamil Siddiqi Chairman

2 Naeem Shafi Member

3 Javed Khan Member

COMPOSITION OF RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

1 Naeem Shafi Chairman

2 Javed Khan Member

3 Abdullah Ahsan Saleem Member

COMPOSITION OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE

1 Naeem Shafi Chairman

2 Khalid Jamil Siddigi Member

3 Muhammad Shafi Member

8
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COMPOSITION OF BANKING COMMITTEE

1 Abdullah Ahsan saleem Chairman
2 Naeem Shafi Member
3 Javed Khan Member
COMPOSITION OF SHARES TRANSFER COMMITTEE

1 Waseem Shafi Chairman
2 Javed Khan Member
3 Saleha Majid Member

Meeting of the Board and its Committees

During the year, four meetings of Board of Directors (BOD), four meetings of Audit Committee (AC)
and one meeting of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HRRC) were held. The
attendance of the Directors and the number of their directorship in listed companies, including
International Knitwear Limited, is as follows:

Executive | Committee Attendance
Sr. | Name of Directors | Director Status Directors bers
No ship AC | HRRC | BOD AC |HRRC
1 | Mr. Khalid Jamil 1 Re-elected w.e.f| No o Y 4/4 4/4 | 1/1
Siddiqi 27-10-2024
2 | Mr. Naeem Shafi 2 Re-elected w.e.f Yes - B 4/4 - 1/1
27-10-2024
3 | Mr. Waseem Shafi 1 Re-elected w.e.f Yes - - 2/4 - -
27-10-2024
4 | Mr. Javed Khan 1 Re-elected w.e.f Yes - | 4/4 - 1/1
27-10-2024
5 | Mr. Abdullah Ahsan 1 Re-elected w.e.f No - - 4/4 | 4/4 -
Saleem 27-10-2024
6 | Ms. Saleha Majid 1 Re-elected w.e.f No - - 3/4 | 3/4 -
27-10-2024
7 | Mr. Muhammad 1 Re-elected w.e.f No - - 4/4 - -
Shafi 27-10-2024

Management Committee

The Management Committee, led by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and comprising senior
management, supports timely and informed decision-making across the Company. Acting in an
advisory role to the CEO, it reviews business operations, budgets, and long-term strategies, while
monitoring performance against targets through monthly meetings. The CEO ensures that Board
decisions and directives are effectively communicated and implemented throughout the
organization.
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Evaluation Criteria for the Board
In addition to discharging their statutory responsibilities, the performance of the Company’s Board is
regularly evaluated at both the individual and collective levels, based on the following criteria:

1. Promotion of diversity in gender, talents, skills, and perspectives;

Integrity, credibility, trustworthiness, and active participation of members;

Monitoring and reviewing progress against annual targets set by management;

Provision of strategic guidance and direction to the Company;

Ability to identify and address areas requiring performance improvement;

Review and oversight of management succession planning;

Assessment and understanding of the Company’s risk exposures;

Contribution to strengthening policies and practices relating to health, safety, environment,
employment, and other key areas;

9. Commitment to safeguarding the Company from avoidable litigation and reputational risks.

0 NOW! AW

Performance Evaluation of the Board

The Board’s overall performance for the year, evaluated against the prescribed criteria, has been
found satisfactory. In compliance with Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2017, a detailed report by
the Chairman on the Board's performance is presented in this Annual Report.

Director’s Remuneration
The Board of Directors has approved the Directors’ Remuneration Policy, which includes the
following key provisions:

1. No remuneration shall be paid to non-executive or independent directors, other than meeting
fees for attending meetings of the Board and its Commiittees.

2. The Company shall bear or reimburse directors’ travel and accommodation expenses incurred
in connection with attending Board and Committee meetings.

3. The Directors’ Remuneration Policy shall be subject to periodic review and approval by the
Board of Directors.

Pattern of Shareholding
A statement showing a pattern of shareholdings of the Company and additional information as at
June 30, 2025, is included in the report.

Auditors

The retiring auditors, M/s RSM Avais Hyder Liaguat Nauman, Chartered Accountants, being eligible,
have offered themselves for reappointment. On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Board of Directors proposes their reappointment as auditors of the Company for the financial year
ending June 30, 2026, on such remuneration as may be fixed by the Board in consultation with the
Audit Committee, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

10
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Directors’ Training Program

Four Directors have completed the Directors’ Training Program, while two Directors, having over 25
years of experience serving on the Boards of listed companies, are exempt from this requirement.
The Company intends to arrange the mandatory training for the remaining Directors in the next fiscal
year. The Board is adequately equipped to discharge its responsibilities, and the Directors are fully
aware of their duties, powers, and obligations under the Companies Act, 2017 and the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Rule Book.

Acknowledgement

The Board places on record its sincere appreciation to the executives, officers, staff members, and
workers for their dedication, hard work, and commitment, which have contributed significantly to
the Company’s performance. The Board also extends its gratitude to the Company’s bankers,
customers, and suppliers for their continued support and cooperation. The Management remains
confident that these valued relationships will be further strengthened in the years ahead.

For and on behalf of the Board

‘:;PA:T’:“;%M ﬂl“‘%

JAVED KHAN NAEEM SHAF|
Karachi: September 29,2025 Director Chief Executive
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SUMMARY OF KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA OF

SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE
Below is a summary of key operating and financial results for six years and includes the financial results for the year under
review:
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
000’
ASSETS EMPLOYED
Property, plant and equipment 97,333 73,514 60,017 53,236 35,983 35,942
Long-term investments 29,907 28,025 20,394 20,867 16,979 14,478
Long-term deposits 1,500 1,500 1,500 2,052 2,052 2,052
Short-term investments 42,614 32,485 20,006 17,439 16,781 8,506
Net current assets 68,180 63411 75,075 67,514 71,626 72,410
Total assets employed 197,848 167,312 158,307 144,556 127,481 136,512
FINANCED BY
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 96,750 96,750 96,750 96,750 96,750 96,750
Reserve and un-appropriated profit 85,006 61,404 60,035 45,218 23,133 28,020
Gain / (Loss) on revaluation of investments 12,647 9,157 1,521 1,945 905 (982}
Shareholder's equity 194,403 167,311 158,306 143,913 120,788 123,788
Long term and deferred liabilities 3,444 - 642 6,693 12,723
Total capital employed 197,847 167,311 158,306 144,555 127,481 136,511
Sales 1,210,573 850,505 611,489 670,262 488,090 537,457
Profit before income taxes and final taxes 49,297 26,780 37,130 27,585 6,620 16,865
Profit/ {loss) after Income tax 30,858 11,043 22,073 22,084 (50) 7,735
Earnings/(loss) per share 319 1.14 228 228 (0.01) 0.80
Return on turnover 2.55% 1.30% 3.61% 3.29% 0.1%) 1.40%
Return on capital employed 15.87% 6.60% 13.94% 15.35% (0.04%) 5.60%
Dividend
Cash (%) 10% 15% 10% 7.5% 0% 5%
Stock (%) 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

12
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Liquidity Ratios

Current Ratio

Quick Ratio

Cash to Current Liabilities
Current Assets to Total Assets
Inventory / Current Assets
Inventory to Total Assets
Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit Margin

Qperating Profit Margin

Profit Before Taxation Margin
Net Profit Margin

Finacial Charges to Net Income
Return on Assets

Return on Equity

Debt to Equity Ratio

Activity Ratios

Average No of Days Inventory in Stock
Accounts Receivable Turnover
Total Assets Turnover

Leverage

Interest Coverage Ratio

Fixed Assets to Equity
Investment /Market Value
Break-up Value

Price Earning Ratio

Dividend Payout Ratio

Market Value Per Share at End of The
Year

Share Price - High During the Year
Share Price - Low During the Year

uom

Times
Times
Times

Days
Times
Times

Times
Times

Rs.
Times

Rs.

Rs.

Jun-25

111
0.83
0.00
84.02
25.66
21.56

8.79
5.68
4.07
2.55
95.40
3.80
15.87
31736

69
5.07
187

2.80
0.50

20.09
6.41

20.23

2174
12.00

Jun-24

120
043
0.01
78.47
6431
5046

9.57
5.52
315
1.30
256.84
2.29
6.60
188.45

81
18.58
2.08

201
044

17.29
1517
65.79
1317

17.00
1250

Jun-23

143
0.63
0.01
75.13
55.56
41.74

13.20
771
6.07
3.61

58.13
6.60

1394

111.37

92
6.68
1.63

4.11
0.38

16.36

7.18
43.86
13.50

1360
930

Jun-22

125
0.78
0.02
81.48
3734
3042

891
523
412
329
65.26
531
15.35
189.10

75
6.96
1.86

3.06
0.37

14.87

6.55
32.89
10.00

14.50
9.00

Jun-21

14
071
0.00
81.59
4373
40.58

827
37
136
(0.01)
(35,3L4.00)
0.02)
0.04)
15118

115
12.61
1.59

140
0.30

12.48
(1,318.00)

1436

19.95
12.40

Jun-20

148
0.56
0.01
83.00
61.83
51.32

9.54
5.55
3.14
144
172.00
248
6.25
152.06

105
12.80
182

236
0.29

12.78
17.64
62.50
16.50

1890
12.00
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL ANALYSES

Capital expenditure {In 000) Property, plant and equipment (In 000)
35973 120,000
] 97333
100,000
30,000 L
29766 0 73514
25,000 22,786 ! .
19,553 60,017 .
20,000 60,000 53,236
14,842
5 00 35583 35302
o 8,601 CHIED
o ol I 20,000 I I
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Return on Equity (%) Break-up Value (In Rs.)
18.00% 15.87%
16.00% : ki =
13.94% .
14.00% 20
12.00%
10.00% 15 13
8.00% 6.60% 6.25%
6.00% 1o
4.00%
2.00% 5
0.00%
2.00% 2022 2021 2020
0.04% 2055 2024 203 202 2021 2020
o
Total assets employed (In 000) Dividend payout (%)
250,000
197,348 2%
200,000 — . ) 10% 10%
167312 459207 s
150,000 = gae 136512 ™ 7.5% 7.5%
6% 5%
100,000
4%
50,000 o
0%
0%
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL ANALYSES

Sales (In 000)
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2025 2024 2023 W02 2021 2020
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80,000
66,709
76,000
50,000
40000 46014 47,136
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29,820
30,000
20,000 N
16,000
025 2026 2003 2022 201 200

Profit/ {loss) after Income tax (In 000)

35,000

30858
30,000
25,000 22,073 22,084
20,000
15,000 1103
10,000 7,735
5,000

2024 2023 2022 2020
(5,000}

15

120,000
100,000
80,000
60,000

40,000

60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000

10,000

Gross profit (In 000)

106,356
81379 80,705
59,741
51,287
I 40362 I
2005 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Profit before income taxes and final
taxes (In 000)

48,297
130
26,780 27,585
16,865
6620
2035 2024 2083 2022 2021 X

Earnings/(loss) per share {In Rs.)

114
I 0.80

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
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BOARD OPERATIONS AND DECISION-MAKING

The Board of Directors, as stewards of shareholder
interests, ensures effective governance and long-
term sustainability of the Company. The Board
performs its functions by:

« Providing
management;

strategic guidance to

« Setting performance benchmarks; and

« Monitoring and reviewing performance
outcomes.

The Board’s primary responsibility is to protect
and enhance shareholder wvalue. It is actively
engaged in formulating and reviewing strategies,
setting annual objectives and financial targets, and
overseeing the Company’s operations in light of
emerging risks and opportunities.

Furthermore, the Board is entrusted with
maintaining a comprehensive system of internal
controls, policy frameworks, and corporate
governance practices. It is also accountable for risk
management and for periodically reviewing the
effectiveness of these systems to ensure
compliance and sound governance.

DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE BOARD

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019, meetings of the
Board of Directors are convened quarterly. At
these meetings, all significant and material
matters are placed before the Board for due
consideration and approval.

Where urgent approvals are required, such
matters are resolved through circular resolutions,
duly signed by all directors. The Company’s policy on

16

materiality defines the nature and threshold of
transactions that qualify as significant or material,
thereby requiring submission to the Board for
approval or ratification.

Furthermore, the Board delegates specific
functions and responsibilities to its Committees in
line with their approved Terms of Reference,
ensuring effective oversight and decision-making
in specialised areas.

DECISIONS DELEGATED TO MANAGEMENT

Management is responsible for implementing the
strategies and policies approved by the Board of
Directors. Its role includes effectively and ethically
managing the day-to-day operations of the
Company in alignment with the Board’s vision,
objectives, and approved goals. Management is
also tasked with identifying and managing key
risks and opportunities that may impact the
Company in the normal course of business.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS
MEMBERS, AND ITS COMMITTEES

In compliance with the requirements of the Code
of Corporate Governance, the Board has
established a structured mechanism for the annual
evaluation of its performance, as well as that of its
members and committees. The evaluation is
conducted against well-defined criteria, focusing
on the following areas:

« Board Composition: Knowledge,
experience, diversity, size, independence,

and succession planning to ensure effective

governance.
« Board and CEO Compensation:
Competitiveness and fairness of

remuneration policies for the Board, its

committees, and the CEQ.
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Strategic  Planning: Contribution to
effective risk management and monitoring
performance against strategic objectives.

Board Procedures: Transparency,
efficiency, and overall effectiveness of
Board processes.

Board Information: Adequacy and
timeliness of information provided to the
Board and its committees.

Board and Committees’ Effectiveness:
Performance, efficiency, and contribution
of the Board and its committees.

Chairman and CEO  Effectiveness:
Evaluation of leadership, effectiveness, and
performance of the Chairman and CEO.

Control  Environment: Oversight  of
financial reporting, including adequacy of
internal controls.

Environmental, Social, and Goverhance
(ESG): Commitment to ESG initiatives and
progress made on sustainability goals.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

In accordance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, and the
Articles of Association of the Company, the Board
of Directors has approved a remuneration pelicy
for non-executive directors, including independent
directors. The salient features of the policy are as

follows:

.

No remuneration shall be paid to non-
executive directors (including independent
directors) other than meeting fees for
attending meetings of the Board and its
committees.

The amount of meeting fees shall be
determined and approved by the Board of
Directors from time to time.

Directors shall be reimbursed for all travel,
boarding, lodging, and related expenses
incurred in connection with attending
Board meetings, committee meetings, or
general meetings of the Company.

ROLE OF CHAIRMAN

The Chairman leads the Board of Directors,
ensuring it functions effectively and in the
best interests of shareholders. The
Chairman sets the agenda for Board
meetings, guides discussions, and ensures
that directors have the necessary
information to make informed decisions.

ROLE OF CEQO

The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) manages
the day-to-day operations of the Company
in line with the strategies approved by the
Board. The CEQ is responsible for
implementing business plans, achieving
performance targets, managing risks, and
maintaining effective communication with
shareholders, regulators, and other
stakeholders. The CEO also promotes
ethical values and good governance
throughout the organization.

BRIEF TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE
BOARD & BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three
Non-Executive Directars and is chaired by
an Independent Director. The Company
Secretary serves as its secretary.
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The Committee meets at least four times
annually.

Key Terms of Reference:

Review of financial statements prior to
Board approval;

Review of preliminary announcements of
results before publication;

Facilitation of external audits and
discussion of key audit findings, in the

absence of management where required;

Review of management letters issued by
external auditors and management’s
response;

Oversight of the internal audit function,
including audit scope, plan, and adequacy
of resources;

Recommendation of external auditors’
appointment, removal, fees, and
permissible non-audit services;

Safeguarding of Company assets;
Any other matter delegated by the Board.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (HRRC)

The HRRC comprises an Independent
Director, one Non-Executive Director, and
the Chief Executive Officer, with the
Independent Director serving as Chair. The
Director Human Resources acts as

secretary.
Key Terms of Reference:

Adoption and review of HR and
remuneration policies in line with laws and
regulations;

Recommendations on selection,
evaluation, compensation, and succession
planning of key executives (CEO, CFO,
Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit

& Compliance, and other senior officers);
Oversight of remuneration frameworks to
ensure alignment with performance;
Review of HR management policies,

succession  planning, recruitment, and
retention practices;

Monitoring of workplace health and safety
programs.

BANKING COMMITTEE

The Committee comprises an Independent
Director, one Executive Director, and the
CEOQ, chaired by the Independent Director.

Key Terms of Reference:

Approving changes to the banking
sighatory matrix;

Approving establishment, enhancement, or
cancellation of banking facilities;

Signing agreements related to banking
transactions;

Authorizing execution of service

agreements with banks.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Committee comprises an Independent
Director, one Non-Executive Director, one

Executive Director, and the CEO, chaired by
the Independent Director.

Key Terms of Reference:

Approving and  reviewing the  risk

management framework and policies;



[nternational Knitwear Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Assessing the adequacy of risk
management systems;

Evaluating the Company’s risk exposure
and tolerance levels;

Reviewing management-identified risks
and mitigation measures;

Reviewing internal controls relating to risk
management;

Supporting the Board in policy formulation
on risk.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee ensures the
Board is composed of qualified individuals
with diverse expertise.

Key Terms of Reference:

Recommending candidates for Board
membership;

Reviewing Board structure, size, and
composition;

Recommending appointments of
committee members and chairpersons.

SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE

The Committee comprises three members
appointed by the Board, with one serving
as Chairperson. The Company Secretary (or
nominee) acts as secretary.

Key Terms of Reference:

Reviewing and approving all share transfer
requests in line with Articles of
Association, SECP rules, and stock
exchange requirements;

Verifying transfer documents and ensuring
compliance;

Resolving disputes or objections relating to
share transfers;

Maintaining accurate records of share
transfers;

Coordinating with the Registrar and
Transfer Agent;

Reporting to the Board on transfer
activities and presenting an annual
summary.

SIGNIFICANT POLICIES & OTHERS

SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL
RESPONSIBILITY

International Knitwear is committed to
protecting the environment and ensuring
sustainable operations. Guided by its
Environment, Health, and Safety (EHS)
policy, the Company strives to:

Maintain a safe and healthy workplace;
Minimise adverse environmental impacts;
Conserve energy and natural resources;

Integrate health, safety, and environment
into business planning;

Educate  employees  and
stakeholders;

engage

Ensure full legal compliance.
SUCCESSION PLANNING

The Board and senior management
conduct annual Talent Management
Reviews (TMRs) to identify successors for
key roles, ensuring leadership continuity
and diversity. Plans are in place for “Ready
Now” and “Ready Future” successors

across all organisational levels.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY — “SPEAK UP”

The Company encourages employees and
stakeholders to report concerns in good
faith without fear of retaliation. Reports
can be made confidentially via email,
telephone, or online. All cases are
investigated fairly, and retaliation is strictly
prohibited.

SAFETY OF RECORDS

The Company ensures compliance and
security in record-keeping through:

Digital and physical backups of key records;

Confidentiality and
management of documents;

SOP-based

Real-time data backup at on-site and off-
site locations.

SUSTAINABILITY & SOCIAL IMPACT
STRATEGY

Environmental Initiatives: Energy
efficiency, water conservation, waste
management, and carbon footprint
reduction.

Social Initiatives: Compliance with labour
laws, safe workplaces, diversity, inclusion,
women'’s empowerment, and CSR
programs in education, healthcare, and
livelihoods.

Governance Initiatives: Anti-corruption
practices, supply chain transparency, and
sustainability oversight.
Sustainable Products: Use of eco-friendly
materials, innovative design for durabil
and reduced waste.

governance

ANTI-HARASSMENT POLICY

The Company promotes a respectful
workplace free from harassment,
discrimination, bullying, or misconduct.

Covers all employees, contractors, and
stakeholders;

Provides reporting channels (supervisors,
HR, hotline);

Ensures fair, confidential investigations;

Mandates awareness and training for
employees;

Enforces disciplinary action, including
termination for violations.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board-approved policy ensures all
related party transactions are:

Reviewed and approved as per Section 208
of the Companies Act, 2017;

Conducted on an arm's length basis and

fair commercial terms;

Periodically reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT(as per SECP
Circular 10 of 2024)

For the year ended June 30, 2025:
Mean Gender Pay Gap:14.66%
Median Gender Pay Gap:(42.86)%

The Company ensures equitable pay for
female employees in line with their
qualifications, roles, and performance, and
remains committed to minimising the gap.
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Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of InternationalKnitwear Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, thestatement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the profit and
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofPakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Following are the key audit matters:

revenue from sale to export
as well as local customers. We
considered revenue
recognition as key audit
matter as it is one of the key
performance indicators and
because of the potential risk

S. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
No
1. Revenue Our audit procedures included the
(Refer note 19to the financial | following:
statements) -Obtained an understanding of the process
relating to recognition of revenue and
The Company generates | testing the design, implementation and

operating effectiveness of key internal

controls.

-Performed test of details on a sample basis
with underlying documentations by
inspecting and comparing customer orders,
delivery challans, bill of lading (in case of

related estimations involved,
this is considered as a key
audit matter.

that revenue may not be export sales), invoices and other related

recorded in the appropriate documents.

period.
-Compared sample of revenue transactions
recorded around the year end with the
sales orders, sales invoices, delivery
documents and other relevant underlying
documentation to ensure that revenue
pertains to the appropriate accounting
period.
-Ensured the adequacy of disclosures in
accordance with Applicable Financial
Reporting Framework and the Companies
Act, 2017.

2. Stock in trade Our audit procedures included the

(Refer note 8to the financial following:

statements)
-Obtained an understanding of internal

Due to the significance of | controls over purchases and valuation of

inventory balances and stock in trade and tested, on a sample

basis, their design, implementation and
operating effectiveness.

-Attendedphysical inventory count
performed by the Company.

-Obtained and reviewed the inventory
count report of the management and

assessedits accuracy on a sample basis.
-Ensuring that proper provision has been
made for slow moving, obsolete and
damaged inventory or items selling below
cost.

-Performed NRV test to ensure that the
is valued at lower of cost and

22




RSM

RSM Avale Hyder Liaquat Nauman

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Chartered hecouniants
TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s reports thereon

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Respor of Mar and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

-ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

-Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

-Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

-Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern ba of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
-Evaluate the owverall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding. among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

cluding any significant

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial stataments of the currant year
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse cansequences of doing so would reasanably be expected to autweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

©) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1920), was
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under
section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Syed Naveed Abbas.

7R Y @MTML_
Chartered Accountants

Karachi.

Date: October 01, 2025

UDIN: AR202510238btxD2wLOY
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<5 Iniernational Knitwear Limited

‘ STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30,2025

2025 2024
ASSETS Note Rupees Rupees
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 97,333,097 73,514,795
Long term deposits 6 1,500,000 1,500,000
Long term loan and advances 10 927,500 861,000
Long term investments. 7 29,807,662 28,025,260
129,668,259 103,901,055
Current Assets
Stock in trade & 174,951,260 243,547,295
Short term investments 7 42,614,407 32,485,208
Trade debts - considered good 9 424,314,509 53,207,686
Short term loans and advances 10 6,331,066 6,306,453
Other receivables 11 15,134,391 25,279,007
Taxation - net 15,703,936 14,609,852
Cash and bank balances 12 2,646,910 3,272,247
681,696,479 378,707,754
TOTAL ASSETS 811,364,738 482,608,809
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised Capital
20,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 200,000,000 _____ 200,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 13 96,750,000 96,750,000
Revenue Reserves
Unappropriated profit 85,006,606 61,404,294
181,756,606 158,154,294
Capital Reserves
Unrealized gain on revaluation of investments - FVTOCI 12,647,282 9,157,568
194,403,888 167,311,862
Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred Liabilities - Deferred Taxation Liability 14 3,444,616 -
3,444,616 -
Current Liabilities
Short term finance under mark-up arrangement - Secured 15 302,871,536
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 16
Unclaimed dividend
613,516,230 315,296,950
Contingencies and Commitments 18 - -

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

I~

KHALID JAMIL SIDDIQI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director / CFO
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| STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Net sales
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Administrative and selling expenses
Operating profit

Other income
Unrealized gain on revaluation of investments through P&L

Finance cost
Other charges

Profit before income taxes and final taxes
Taxation - Final taxes
Profit before income tax

Taxation - Income tax
Current - for the year
Prior year

Deferred Tax

Profit after Income tax

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

; 1%

Note

19
20

21

22

23
24

17

7

14

26

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
1,210,573,713 850,505,029
(1,104,217,547) (769,107,246)
106,356,166 81,397,783
(37,646,184) (34,482,873)
68,709,982 46,914,910
11,401,211 4,943,401
2,270,783 5,270,575
13,671,994 10,213,976
82,381,976 57,128,886
(29,438,850) (28,363,703)
(3,645,568) (1,984,797)
(33,084 ,418) {30,348,500)
49,297,557 26,780,386
(1,004,213) (1,273,875)
48,293,344 25,506,511
(14,605,998) (9,353,314)
- (5,109,656)
(2,828,784) -
(17,434,782) {14,462,970)
30,858,562 11,043,541
3.19 114

KHALID JAMIL SiDDIQI NAEEM SHAFI
Chairman Chief Executive
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‘ STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees

Profit after taxation for the year 30,858,562 11,043,541
Items that will be subsequently reclassified to of profit or loss - -
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit or
loss
Unrealised gain on remeasurement of investments classified as FVTOCI - 3820947 7630203
net of tax
Reclassification of OCI t on di | of FVTOCI investment

.ec asmlca ion (? component on disposal o investmen 284598 2473
directly into equity
Defered tax 14 (615,832) -

3,489,714 7,636,376

Total comprehensive income for the year 34,348,276 18,679,917

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

”Op«% = e

KHALID JAMIL SIDDIQI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director / CFO
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International Knitwear Limited
| STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

~Capital Reserve-- --Revenue Reserve--

Issued, Unrealized gain /
Subscribed and {loss) on Unappropriated Total
Paid up Share revaluation of profit
Capital investments
Rupees

Balance as at June 30, 2023 96,750,000 1,521,192 60,035,753 158,306,945
Total comprehensive income:

Net profit for the year ended June 30, 2024 - - 11,043,541 11,043,541
Reclassification on disposal of FVTOC! directly into equity - 7,634,203 - 7,634,203
Fair value adjustment on investment classified as FVTOCI - 2,173 - 2,173
Transaction with owners:

10% cash dividend paid for the year ended June 30, 2023 - - (9,675,000) {9,675,000)
Balance as at July 01, 2024 96,750,000 9,157,568 61,404,294 167,311,862
Total comprehensive income:

Net profit for the year ended June 30, 2025 - - 30,858,562 30,858,562
Reclassification on disposal of FVTOC! directly into equity - 3,205,115 - 3,205,115
Fair value adjustment on investment classified as FVTOCI - 284,599 - 284,599
Transaction with owners:

7.50% cash dividend paid for the year ended June 30, 2024 - - (7,256,250) {7,256,250)
Balance as at June 30, 2025 96,750,000 12,647,282 85,006,606 194,403,888

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financiol statements

KHALID JAMIL SIDDIQI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director / CFO
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‘ STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income taxes and final taxes
Adjustment for non cash items:

Depreciation

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Other income

Finance cost

Profit before changes in working capital
(Increase) in current assets

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Short term loans and advances

Other receivables

Increase in current liabilities
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Financial charges paid

Taxes paid

Cash proceed from Sales tax

Net cash ( used in } / generated from operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES.

Capital expenditure

Additions in investment

Disposal of investment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash proceeds from short term finance under markup arrangement
Repayment of short term finance under markup arrangement
Dividend paid

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees

49,297,557 26,780,386
11,517,780 3,160,026
(28,442) (1,097,375)
(13,643,552 (9,116,601}
29,438,850 28,363,704
27,284,634 27,309,754
76,582,192 54,090,140
68,536,035 (103,880,706)
(371,106,823) (14,866,236)
(91,107) 16,892,222
10,144,616 (15,641,192)
(292,457,279) (117,495,912)
37,433,110 93,309,259
37,433,110 93,309,259
(29,438,850) (28,363,704)
(16,226,255) (11,027,201)
18,737,621 16,806,699
(205,369,460} 7,319,280

(35,973,140)
(46,240,582)

(22,766,231)
(27,900,899)

32,762,419 17,791,231
665,500 1,206,000
(48,785,803} (41,669,899)
557,141,089 345,723,312
(296,584,121) (300,655,452}
(7,042,441) (9,350,971)
253,514,527 35,716,889
(640,736} 1,366,271
(2,696,361) (4,062,631)

27 3,337,095) (2,696,361,

e R e
i - .

KHALID JAMIL SIDDIQI NAEEM SHAFI
Chairman Chief Executive

JAVED KHAN

Director / CFO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

30

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

International Knitwear Limited (hereinafter referred as the "Company” or "IKL") is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on Pakistan Stack
Exchange Limited. The geographical location and address of the head office and manufacturing plant of the Company is Plot # F-2A/L,
SITE, Karachi, Pakistan.

‘We are leaders in creating, developing and manufacturing knitted and woven apparel products right from basic to highly fashioned
garments. We are engaged in the export of quality garments, We have established a name of credentials owing ta the projected
commitments, working speed and quality practices. Our operating philosophy is to provide buyers with products that meet their
specification, and are reliably delivered at a reasonable price in domestic and international markets.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

21

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of :

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified

under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

During the year the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) have withdrawn the Technical
Release 27 "IAS 12, Income Taxes {Revised 2012)" and issued guidance — “IAS 12 Application Guidance on
Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes”, The said guidance requires taxes paid under final tax
regime to be shown separately as a levy instead of showing

in current tax.

Accordingly, the impact has been

in these financial

in

accordance with the requirement of Internatianal Accounting Standard (IS 8) - ‘Accounting Palicies,
Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors’. There has been no effect on the Statement of Financial
Position, Earnings per share and Statement of Changes in Equity as a result of this change.

Effect on profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

For the year ended June 30, 2025
Taxation - Final taxes

Profit before inceme tax
Taxation - Income tax

Effect on profit or loss and other
‘comprehensive income
For the year ended June 30, 2024
Taxation - Final taxes
Profit before income tax
Taxation - Income tax

Had there been no
change in Accounting
Policy

49,297,557
18,438,995

Had there been no
change in Accounting
Policy

26,780,386
15,736,845

Impact of change in
Aaccounting policy

1,004,213
(1,004,213)
(1,004,213)

Impact of change in
accounting policy

1,273,875
(1,273,875)
(1,273,875)

After Incorporating
effects of change in
accounting policy

1,004,213
48,293,344
17,434,782

After Incorporating
effects of change in
accounting policy

1,273,875
25,506,511
14,462,970
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Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as stated otherwise in these financial
statements.
Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is Company's functional currency. All the financial
information presented in Pakistani Rupee has been rounded off to nearest Rupee.
Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in canformity with International Financial Reparting Standards (IFRS) requires the use of
certain accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the pracess of applying the Company's
accounting palicies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements, are as follows:
- Classification of financial instruments; (note 4.2}
Pravision for impairment; (note 4.4)
- Valuation of work in progress; {note 4.8)
- Provision for obsclete inventory; (note 4.11)
Taxation; {note 4.14)

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experiences and other facters, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS APPLICABLE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Change in ing standards, i ions and ] to published ing and reporting standards.
(a) di to published ing and reporting dards which became effective during the year:
New and amended standards mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning July 1, 2024,

d toIAS 1, ‘Pr jon of Financial " is applicable on accounting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2024.Under existing IAS 1requirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the
reporting period. As part of these amendments, the requirement for a right to be unconditional has been removed
and instead, the amendments requires that a right to defer settlement must have substance and exist at the end of
the reporting period. This right may be subject to a company complying with conditions {covenants) specified in a
loan agreement. At October 31, 2022, after reconsidering certain aspects of the amendments, the IASB reconfirmed
that anly covenants with which a company must comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of a
liability as current or non-current, Covenants with which the company must comply after the reporting date (i.e.
future covenants) do not affect a liability’s classification at that date. However, when non-current liabilities are
subject to future covenants, companies will now need to disclose infarmation to help users understand the risk that
those liabilities could become repayable within 12 months after the reporting date.”

The other new standards, amendments to published accounting and reporting interpretations that are mandatory in

Pakistan for the financial year beginning on July 1, 2024 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant
effect on the Company’ financial reporting and operations.
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A di to published

and reporting standards that are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Company

The following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective for the financial
year beginning on July 1, 2024 and have not been early adopted by the Company:

a) Amendments to IAS 21" The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’ is applicable on accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2025. The amendments address situations where a currency may lack
exchangeability, often due to government-imposed contrals. In such cases, companies must estimate a spot
exchange rate reflecting orderly transactions at the measurement date. The amendments provide flexibility, allowing
the use of observable rates without adjustment or other estimation technique provided they meet the estimation
objective. The assessment considers factors like the availability of multiple rates, purpose, nature, and update
frequency. The amendments require new disclosures, including the nature and financial impact of non-
exchangeability, the spot exchange rate used, the estimation process, and associated risks.

b) New standard IFRS 18 ‘Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements’ is applicable on accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2027. The standard focuses on updates to the statement of profit or loss. It
introduces key concepts such as the structure of the statement of profit required disclosures for certain profit or loss
performance measures reported outside the financial statements (management-defined performance measures),
and enhances principles on aggregation and disaggregation applicable to the primary financial statements and notes.

¢} New standards IFRS $1 ‘General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information’ and
IFRS 52 “Climate-related Disclosures’ are applicable on accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2025, These
standards include the core framework for the disclosure of material information about sustainability-related risks,
opportunities across an entity’s value chain and set out the requirements for entities to disclose information about
climate-related risks and opportunities.

IFRS S1 requires entities to disclose information about its sustainability-related risks and opportunities that is useful
to primary users of general-purpose financial reporting in making decisions relating to providing resources to the
entity, The standard provides guidance on identifying sustainability-related risks and opportunities and the relevant
disclosures to be made in respect of those sustainability-related risks and opportunities.

IFRS 52 is a thematic standard that builds on the requirements of IFRS 51 and is focused on climate-related
disclosures. IFRS S2 requires an entity to identify and disclose climate-related risks and opportunities that could
affect the entity’s prospects over the short, medium and long term. In addition, IFRS 52 requires entities to consider
other industry-based metrics and seven cross-industry metrics when disclosing qualitative and quantitative
components on how the entity uses metrics and targets to measure, monitor and manage the identified material
climate-related risks and opportunities The cross-industry metrics include disclosures on greenhouse gas ('GHG')
emissions, transition risks, physical risks, climate-related opportunities, capital deployment, internal carbon prices
and remuneration.

The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations in future
periods, will have no material impact on the financial other thanin pi ion / disclosures. There are
a number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet effective
and are also not relevant to the Company and, therefore, have not been presented here,
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies are consistently applied in the preparation of these financial statements are the same as those applied

earlier perlods presented.

41

‘Government Grant (IAS 20}
Grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grant will be received.
The benefit of a lang-term finance at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a deferred grant, measured as the difference
between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.
Grants related to long-term finances are recognized in profit or [oss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company
recognizes as finance cost related to long-term finances at market rate of interest.
Financial Instruments
Initial measurement of financial asset
The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categaries:
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL]; and
measured at amortized cost.
A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition,

Subsequent measurement
The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest / markup or dividend income, are recognized in income statement.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

amortized cost mathod. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses (see (ii) below). Interest /
markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in
income statement.

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income
calculated using the effective interest methad, foreigh exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in income statement. Other net gains and losses are

recognized in OCL On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OC are
reclassified to income statement.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as
income in income statement unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCl and are
never reclassified to income statement.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred

and the Company has transferred.

Non-derivative financial assets

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the

respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with

fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes long term loans, accruals, prepayments,
advances and other receivables and cash and cash ival The Company the financial assets when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in 2

transaction In which substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither

transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset.
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4.5

4.6

4.7

34

Regular way contracts

All purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the time frame blished by regulation or market c
such as 'T+2' purchases and sales are recognized at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to
purchase or sell the assets.

Impairment
Financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assets measured at amortized

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for other securities and bank balances
which are measured at 12 months expected credit losses. Since these assets are short term in nature, therefore no credit loss is
expected on these balances.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount, being higher of value in use and
fair value less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset, For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or groups of assets, An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment lasses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the company becomes party to the respective
contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings and trade and other payables. The Company
derecognizes the financial liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired. Financial liability other
than at fair value through profit or lass are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method

Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when the
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and the Company intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense items of such assets and liabilities are also offset and the net
amount is reported in the financial statements only when permitted by the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged, from the month when the asset is available for use and ceased prior to the month of disposal, to profit
and loss account applying the straight-line method.

Maintenance and repazirs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are
capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date,

Gains and losses arising on disposal of property, plant and equipment are taken to profit and loss account in the year of disposal.
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49

4.10

411

413

Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the balance sheet date and represents expenditure incurred on
property, plant and equipment in the course of construction. These expenditures are transferred to relevant category of
property, plant and equipment as and when the assets start operation,

Right-of use assets
Right of use assets are initially measured at cost being the present value of lease payments, initial direct costs, any lease

payments made at or before the commencement of the lease as reduced by any incentives received. These are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged on straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the asset. Where the
ownership of the asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or if the cost of the asset reflects that the
Cempany will exercise the purchase option, depreciation is charged over the useful life of asset

Leases

A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideratian. The entity recagnizes a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the
straight line method over the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life . The estimated useful lives of assets are
determined on the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the entity's incremental
borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease
payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a
change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably
certain not to be exercised. Liabilities in respect of short term and low value |eases are not recognized and payments against
such leases are recognized as expense in profit or loss.
Stock-in-Trade
(a) Raw, packing and other materials are valued at the lower of cost calculated on a first-in-first-out basis and net
realizable value.
(b) Work in process is valued at material cost plus estimated cohversion cost.
{e) Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). NRV signifies the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less cost necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale.
(d)  Stock-in-transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

Staff Retirement Benefits

The Company operates an appreved defined contributory provident fund scheme for eligible employees. Equal contributians are
made to the fund by the Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33 % of basic salary.

Compensated Absences

The Company has a policy to provide for compensated absences for all employees in accordance with the rules of the Company.
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414 Taxation - Levy and Income tax
Levy

In accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, computation of final taxes is not based on taxable income. Therefore, as
per IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes issued by the ICAP, these fall within the
scape of IFRIC 21/1AS 37 and accordingly have been classified as levy in these unconsolidated financial statements, except for
taxes on dividends an the Company’s investments in subsidiaries and associates which are specifically within the scope of IAS 12

and hence these continue to be categorized as current income tax.
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable incame at the current rates of taxation in accordance with the final tax regime,

of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Income not covered under final tax regime is taxed under normal regime.
Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary difference between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of
deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and

liabilities, using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date.

4.15  Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are directly
attributable to the construction of a qualifying asset in which case they are capitalized as part of the cost of that particular asset.

4.16  Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it is
probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate

of the obligation can be made.

4,17 Foreign Currencies Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pak Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are expressed in rupees at rates of exchange
prevailing on that date. Non monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated

using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions. Exchange gains and losses are included in income currently.

4.18  Revenue Recognition

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring promised
goods to customer. Goods are transferred when the customer obtains their contral (i.e. on dispatch of goods to customers).

Revenue is recognized at transaction price {which excludes estimates of variable consideration).
- Profit on bank balances is recognized on a time propartion basis on the principal amount outstanding and at the applicable

- Gains / {losses) arising on disposal of investments are recognized on the date when the transaction takes place.
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Balances from contract with customers

Contract assets

A contract asset Is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. The Company
recognizes a contract asset for the earned consideration that is conditional if the Company performs by transferring goods or
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or hefore payment is due

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional. Trade receivables are carried
at original invoice amount less expected credit loss based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are
written off when identified.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration from the customer. A contract liability is recognized at earlier of when the payment is made or the payment is due
if a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods o services to the customer.

ht of return assets

Right of return asset represents the Company's right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customers. The asset is
measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any poetential
decreases in the value of the returned goods. The Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to
its expected level of returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of the returned products.

Refund lial
A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is
measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates its
estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

ities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances, current and deposit account balances with banks, and running finance
facilities availed by the Company, which form an integral part of Company's cash management and are included as part of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flow.

Related Party Transactions

All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm’s length at normal
commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation modes, as admissible, except in
extremely rare circumstances, where subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, it is in the interest of the Company to do

Segments Reporting
\dentification of segments
Export division
Local division
Basis for allocation for revenue and expenses:
Revenue in respect of each segment is separately identifiable. Expenses against knitting charges, dyeing and other charges,
embroidery charges, stitching charges, clearing and forwarding charges, freight octroi and cartage expenses are allocated on
actual basis. However, depreciation and all other general expenses are allocated on the following basis.

Segment Allocation
Basis of allocation Export Local
Depreciation on all assets 45.98% 54.02%
Earnings per share
The Company presents eamnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period.
Dividend and other appropriations
Dividend to the shareholders is recognized in the period in which it is declarad and other appropriations are recognized in the
period in which these are approved by the Board of Directors.
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025 04
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Note Rupees Rupees
Operafing assets 51 97333007 3514795
Capital work n progress 52 - -
Right-of-use assets 53 - -
00 13S0
51 Operating Assets
OWNED ASSETS
. Plant and Fumitureand Office ) Total
Leasehold Land (| Factory Building Mchery Hitings Equprents Motor Vehicles [ Computers
R P
Year ended June 30, 2025
Opering net baok amount 343417 37,888,796 16321812 956,009 925,99 13,062,103 864,641 73,514,794
Additions - cost - - 25,159050 410,740 2131000 3104535 458,000 29,363,325
Transfer fram CWIP/ROU 6,149,341 - 560,474 - - - 6,608815
Disposals - cost - - {2,538970) 85,000 Q81000 (U0 BRI
Depreciation charge w3 m\ (361398 1511,535: 00006 (4115134 (08301} (11512780}
Disposals - accumulated depraciation - 2153478 40250 32,150 389,034 2675112
Closing net book amount 3448240 4577, m 37421641 A4, 55! §12.41 1L852594 806084 97.333097
At June 30, 2025
Cost 4717652 59,663,366 52,683,692 3,708,733 2,045,246 0BT 156098 152,412,660
Accumulated depreciation 1,169,412) 18,091,627 (15,262,051) (2284175 (1237005 (15170433 _ (1,754,860 (SS 07,5631
Net book amount 348240 N577.738 37421641 1,414,558 §12.40 10852594 806084 67.333097
Year ended June 30, 2024
Opening net book amount 3,542,594 34108597 8327710 1235830 80153 1516217 610,103 60,017,214
Adgitions - cost - 10,045,500 196,000 586,520 5340000 747,000 16,915,000
Transfer from CWIP/ROU 5451211 - - E E 5,851,211
Disposals - cost (120000} 83,000) (980000 (38,500} (1.225,300)
Depreciation charge 9, 177| (2,067, um {2,051,408) 1475,80) 97385) BNETSY (R4} (Gl6006)
Disposals - accumulated depreciation 120,000 - 45,708 914,667 36,500 1,116,875
Closing net book amount. 34!5417 37,888,796 16,321,812 956,029 925,996 13,062,103 864,641 73,514,784
Atlune 30, 2024
Cost L7052 53620005 WL 1737519 190326 24209490 2500144 119751690
Accumulated depreciation 11,222,23] 115,731,229) (13,741,800 1,781,900 (977.043) _ {11147388] (1,635,503} (46,235,385)
Net book amount 3405417 37.888.7% 16,321,812 956,029 925,996 13,062,103 864,641 73514785
Rate of depreciation 1% 5% 10% 2% 2% 2% 3%
5.1.4The additions in plant and machinery during the year indlude acouisiti 0lar Pawer genaration system of 150 KVA and 100 KVA amourting to Rs, 12,1 million ang 10.4 million

and i

bilt

respectiuzly. The solar.
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5:1.2 Detail of disposal of property, plant and equipment

Plant and machinery
Plant and machinery
Serape

Maotor Vehicles
Bike GD-110

Offce equipments
AL Daikin 1.5 ton
A Window 075 ten

Computer/Laptop

Lap tp HP CIS 4th Gen
Lap tap HP 25115 4th Gen
Scrape Computers

Lap top HP 45115 4th Gen
Lap tp HP 45115 4th Gen

5.1.3 Segment wise allocatian of depreciation charge for the year

Lease hold land
Factory building
Plant and machinery
Cost of goods sold

Fumniture and fitings
Office equipments
Motor veficles
Computers

Admin and selling expenses

£

5.

Opening balance

Add: Addition during the year
Less: Transter to operating assets

LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Security deposits - SSGC

Security deposits - against finance lease

Movement in capital veork in progress

Accumulated Sale
I o " W“‘_"“’""_!M ke || proceeds Il Soinfos] II Mode of dispasal || 2ot
I Topes | Purchaser
2,538,970 1153678 339 57500 189708 Negotiation e Rafiq
2,538,970 1153678 35200 575,000 189,708
291,000 92,150 198,850 - {198850)  Snatching NiA
293,000 92,150 198,850 - 1198,850]
70000 31,500 38,500 30,000 {8.500) Negotiation Mr, Noman
15,000 3.75¢ 6250 10,000 4750 Negotiation . Abic Al
5,000 40,250 18,750 10,000 (4,750)
35,500 35,500 10,000 10,000 Negotiation Mr. M. Sabir
47,000 47000 13,000 13000 Negotiation AAComputers
257700 257,700 14,500 14500 Negotistion M. Az
15,000 15,000 3,000 3000 Negotistion AAComputers
42,000 33834 8166 10,000 1834 Negotiation AA Computers.
37,200 385,034 8166 50,500 3
332470 _ 2675412 GIP0SE _ G6SS00 28442
I LT ) 028 ]
[ Bpet  J[ tol J[ Total | Ewmor | tol ]| Total 1
Rupees
047 76751 AT 7705 0178 AT
1021985 || 1338433 || 2360358 1,185,107 881,305 2,067,012
1,590,676 1083253 2,673,329 1,176,161 875,247 2,051,408
2633067 | 3MET 6081508 2,388,317 177,280 4165557
157 TOTL|[ 513,685 T797 765,004 A0
129,893 17014 (| 300008 170504 126,881 297,385
178,727 || 2333467 || 411510 2137871 1,590,310 3,728,781
20115 285076 || 08391 282,350 210112 492,462
2,353,708 3082568 5036276 2,863,522 2,130,907 4,994,429

4 The leasehold land of 1.069 acre is located at SITE, Karzchi,

0,

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
6,609,815 5.851,211
L Gemms) sy

1,500,000

1,500,000

6.0 The security doposit held by Bank Al-Habib Limited against the guarantee It has provided 1o Sui Southern Gas Company Limited against supply of gas to the Company. The
guarantes provided by the bank to SSGCL is of Rs, 3,000,000, while the bank has held 50% (i.e. Rs. 1,500,000) of this guarantee from the bank account of Internatianal Knitwear

Unmited 2 security deposit
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7. INVESTMENTS
Long Term Investments.

At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Equity securities - listed

Short Term Investments

At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Equity securities - listed
Mutual funds - listed

7.1 Long Term Investments
Equity Securities - listed

Number of Shares

2025 2024
5,000 26,500
1,000 -
5,000 -
- 1,000
41,500 40,500
14,500 14,500
1,700 1,700

7.2 Short Term Investments
Equity securities - listed

3,000 2,500
5,500 -
9,167 2,600
- 30,000
12,400 12,400
16,500 14,250

7.2.1 Short Term Investments
Mutual Funds - listed

14,476 13,014
13,894 12,591
9,585 8,638
170,691 40,117
- 3
74,301 109,696
0.10 1

40

Engro Fertilizer Limited

Mari Energies Limited

Engro Holdings Limited

Engro Corporation Limited
Pakistan Oilfields Limited

The Hub Power Company Limited
Millat Tractors Limited

Attock Petroleum Limited

Engro Holdings Limited

Pakistan Oilfields Limited

Engro Fertilizer Limited

Pakistan State Oil Company Limited
The Hub Power Company Limited

AKD Islamic Fund

Faysal Funds

MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund
UBL Al-Ameen Islamic Cash Plan-l Fund
UBL Cash Fund

UBL Liquidity Plus Fund

UBL Money Market Fund

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
7.1 29,907,662 28,025,260
7.2 14,808,265 14,544,578
721 27,806,142 17,940,630
42,614,407 32,485,208
—72.522,060 _ _ 60.510.468
927,950 4,404,830
626,850 -
912,800 -
- 332,000
24,492,055 19,842,570
1,998,245 2,364,660
949,722 1,081,200
29,907,662 28,025,260

— 23,307,662 28,025,260

1,438,860 965,600
1,004,080 -
5,410,088 4,213,484
- 4,980,600
4,681,372 2,061,004
2,273,865 2,323,890
— 14808265 _ 14544578
744,083 667,337
1,392,523 1,259,112
980,605 879,942
17,148,436 4,015,367
- 261
7,540,494 11,118,537
1 74
—27.806,142 _____ 17,940,630



%5 [nternational Knitweat Limited

| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025
8. STOCK IN TRADE Note Rupees
Raw material 74,096,585
Work-in-process 52,919,607
Finished goods 8.1 47,935,068
174,951,260
8.1  Finished goods
Finished stock 42,597,397
- Finished stock in transit -
- Scrap/ Left over stock 5,337,671
47,935,068

2024

Rupees

39,891,589

164,940,280
38,715,426
24

7,295

1,492,762

30,287,083
6,935,581

38,715,426

The finished goods includes left over stock of Rs 5.33 M (2024: 6.93 M) recorded at NRV.
9. TRADE DEBTS - CONSIDERED GOOD

Foreign - secured, considered good 155,259,677 18,723,463
Loss on translation of export debters (15,970} (21,632)

155,243,707
Local - unsecured

18,701,831

- Considered good 269,070,802 34,505,855
- Considered doubtful 523,270 523,270

269,594,072 35,029,125
Less: Provision for bad debts 9.1 (523,270 (523,270)
93 424,314,509 53,207,686
9.1 Provision for doubtful trade debts
Opening provision 523,270 523,270
Provision for the year - -
Reversal of provision - -
523,270 523,270

9.2 As at June 30, 2025, trade receivables of Rs 0.523 millien (2024: Rs 0.523 million ) were past due but not impaired.

These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

9.3 Age analysis of trade debts is as follows:

Not yet due 424,314,509 53,207,686
Past due
- Upto 1month - -
- 1to6months - -
- More than & months 523,270 523,270
424,837,779 53,730,956
10. LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loans and advances to employees - Long term portion - unsecured, considered good
Loan to employees 10.1 2,434,605 1,997,733
Less: current portion of loan to employees. (1,507,105) (1,136,733)
927,500 861,000
Short term Loans and advances - unsecured, considered good
Advance to contractor and supplier 4,823,961 5,169,726
Current pertion of advances to employees 1,507,105 36,733
6,331,066 06,459
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101 The unsecured loans te employees are granted in accordance with the terms of Leans are In menthly aver
& period ranging between 3 1o 5 years and are interest free. The outstanding balance as at June 30, 2025 pertains to a period between 1- 3
years,

2025 2024
Transactions: Note Rupee: Rupees.
Advance to €FO
Opening balance - 90,000
Paid advance during the vear - -
B 50,000
Refund advance during the year - (20,000)

102 Company loan made to CFO year 2021 ta maet Educational axpenses of his child which are subsequently racelvedin installments. The closing
balance is Rs. nil million 25 on June 20, 2025 (2024: nil millian)

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax refundable 2,314,643 17,656,462
Export rabate receivables 8,214,840 5,047,766
Research and development receivable 2,574,779 2,574,779
Receivables from Bank BAH/SEP 1,030,120 -
15131301 25,279,007
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cashin hand 200,000 200,000
With banks in:

- Treasures call accaunts {deposit accounts)
- Saving accaun!
- Current accounts

3.946,310 2,572,247
Security depasit 6.1 (1,502,000) (1,500,000

121 Deposit and savings accounts carry profit of 9.50% to 19.00 % per annum {2024: 18.50% - 20.50 % per annum)
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

—Numberofshores
3025 2024
3,000,000 3,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in cash. 30,000,000 30,000,000
225,000 225,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/ each issuad as bonus shares 2,250,000 2,250,000
6,450,000 6,450,000 Right shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in cash 64,500,000 64,500,000
—_o.ors000 _ se7s0000

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carries no right 1o fixed income. The holders are entitled 1o recelve dividends as declared fram time
to time and are entitled to ane vote per share at company. All Share rank equal with regards to the company’s residual assats.

DEFERRED LIABILITIES - DEFERRED TAXATION LIABILITY / (ASSET)

Deferred tax liability arising in respect of
Accelerated tax depreciation 6,405,575 2,309,888
Right 0 use asset - .
Unrealized gain on investments - .

Deferred tax assets arising in respect of:

Provision for doubtful debts (151,748)| 151,748

Unrealized gain on investments - BnL 240,617 (720,586)

Unrealized gain on investments - OC| 615,832

Liability against asset subject to finance lease - -

Carry forward turnover tax (3,765,660) 1,583,771}

(2,960,959) 2,622,609)

3,404,616 (312,721)

Not recorded due to prudence - 312,721
3,444,616 -

141 During the year, the Company has recognized a deferred tax liability of Rs. 3,44 million for the first time. This has arisen due to the application of
the minimum tax regime on export income by FBR. In prior years, deferred tax assets were not recorded on a prudence basis; however, as at
Iune 30, 2024,  deferred tax asset of Rs. 0.31 million had been estimated
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2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees

SHORT TERM FINANCE UNDER MARK-UP ARRANGEMENT - SECURED

Running finance facility 5.1 5,984,005 5,968,608

Export refinance facility 152 60,000,000 10,000,000

Short term finance - local sales 153 5,000,000

Finance against Foreign documentary bills 5.4 81,425,574

Finance against local documentary bills 155 154,486,540

Short term finance - Against Raw Material Local 15.6 49,810,550

Shart term finance - Against Solar 15.7 6,164,867 -

Finance against Twinco Capital Management 158 . 126,330,565

402,871,536 142,299,173

151 Running finance facility
Secured from Bank Al Habib Limited against hypothecation charge over stocks and equitable mortgage over factary property at Plot # F-2A/L,
SITE, Karachi amounting to Rs.405.76 million (2024: Rs. 405.76 millien) {with 50% margin), and lien over export documents and personal
guarantees of Directors of the Company. The rate of mark-up is equal to 3 Months KIBOR + 2.5% p.a (2024: 3 Months KIBOR + 2.5% p.a). The
facility is renewable and is valid till June 30, 2025.The facility for running finance as at June 30, 2025 amounts to Rs. 5.98 million (2024: Rs. 5.96
million] of which amount remaining unutiized at the year end was Rs. 0.02 million (2024 : Rs. 0.04 million]

152 Export refinance facility
Secured from Bank Al Habib Limited against hypothecation charge over stocks and equitable mortgage over factory property at Plot # F-2A/L,
SITE, Karachi amounting to Rs.405.76 million {2024: Rs. 405.76 million) {with 50% margin], and lien over export documents and personal
guarantees of directors of the Company. The rate of mark-up is qual to 3 months' KIBOR + 1.0% p.a (2024: 3 Months KIBOR + 1.0% p.a). The
facility is renewable and is valid till June 30, 2025.The facility for export refinance as at June 30, 2025 amounts ta Rs. 60.0 million (2024: Rs. 10
million) of which amount remaining unutilized at the year end was Rs. nil million. {2024: Rs. 19.0 million)

153 Short term finance - local sales
The Finance secured from Bank Al Habib Limited against invoice of KHAADI (80% of invoice amount) The rate of mark-up is 2qual to 3 Months
KIBOR + 2.5% p.a (2024: 3 Months KIBOR + 2.5% p.a). The facilty is renewable and s valid till June 30, 2025.The facility for Short term finance -
local sales as at June 30, 2025 amounts to Rs. 5 million (2024: il million) of which amounts remaining unutilized at the year end was Rs. nil
million. (2024 : 5.9 million)

154 Finance against Foreign documentary bills
This facility is secured from Bank Al Habib Limited provided to negotiate (purchase) Foreign Documentary bills/documents submitted by the
company on expart made against export L/C denominated in Foreign Currency. The rate of mark-up 3 Month KIBOR + 2.5 % p.a (2024: 3 Month
KIBOR + 2.5 % p.al. The facility is renewable and valid 6ll June 30, 2025.The facility for Finance against Foreign dacumentary bills as at June 30,
2025 amounts to Rs. 81.42 million (2024: nil million} of which amounts remaining unutilized at the year end was Rs. 33.52 million . (2024 : 115 00
million)

155 Finance against local documentary bills
This facility s secured from Bank Al Habib Limited provided to negotiate (purchase) local Documentary bills/documents submitted by the
company on local sales made against lacal L/C. The rate of mark-up 3 Month KIBOR + 2.5 % p.a (2024: 3 Month KIBOR + 2.5 % p.a). The facll
renewable and valid till June 30, 2025 The facility for Finance against Local documentary bills as at June 30, 2025 amounts to Rs. 134.48 million
(2024: nil million) of which amounts remaining unutilized at the year end was Rs. 105.52 million . (2024 : 300.00 millian)

156  Short term finance - Against Raw Material Local
The Finance secured from Bank Al Habib Limited against purchase of raw material for export orders. The rate of mark-up is 2qual 1o 3 Months
KIBOR + 2.5% p.a {lune 30, 2024: nil). The facility is renewable and is valid till June 30, 2025.The facility for Short term finance - Against Raws
Material Lacal as at June 30, 2025 amounts to Rs. 49.81 million (June 30, 2024: nil million) of which amounts remaining unutilized at the period
end was Rs, 0,19 million, (June 30, 2024 : nil)

15.7  Short term finance - Against Solar

The Finance secured from Bank Al Habib Limited against Solar system. The rate of mark-up is equal to 3 Maonths KIBOR + 2.5% p.a {June 30, 2024:
nil). The facility is one off as at June 30, 2025 amounts to Rs. 6.164 million {June 30, 2024: il million) of which amounts remaining unutilized at
the period end was Rs. 3.57 million. {lune 30, 2024 : nil)
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158  Finance against Twinco Capital Management

This finance from Twinco Capital Management against Purchase order of I Corte Ingels 50% of such value Under Mark-up 4.27% for 6 Month

‘The facility utilized at the year end Rs. nil. {2024: 126.33 millicn)

159 Letter of credit Sight

This finance against import of packing and raw materials. Payment is made by the bank upon verification of documents.
This facility for import as at June 30, 2025 amounts to nil million. {2024: 2.0 million) of which the amount remaining unutilized at the year the

end was 2.0 million. (2024: Nil)

CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Creditors

Accrued expenses

Compensated absences payable
Other fund payable

Workers' profit participation fund
Workers' welfare fund

Advance from customers
Payable ta Brokers

Others

161  Other fund payable

Provident fund
EOBI payable

162 Workers' profit participation fund

Opening balance
Provision for the year

Less: Payments made during the year

. TAXATION - INCOME TAX AND FINAL TAXES

Final taxes
Incorne tax
Current - for the year
- for prior year

Deferred Tax

Note

16.1
162

171

14

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees
174,930,102 146,599,026
20,427,580 14,660,873
3,334,009 2,559,329
753,072 683,456
2,639,716 1,438,259
4,497,969 3494117
519,356 443,657

96,279 -

934,788 811,045
208,132,87: 170,699,762
720,142 655,296
32,930 28,160
753,002 683,456

1,438,259 3,473,165
2,641,716 1,438,259

4079975 4311424
(1.440,259) [3.473,165)
1,639,716 1,438,259
1,004,213 1273875

14,605,998 9,353,314
- 5,109,656

14,605,998 14,462,963
3,044,616 -
19,054,827 15,736,844

171 This represents final taxes paid under section 150 and Section 154 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, representing levy in terms of requirements of

IFRIC 21/1AS 37.
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18, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
181  Contingencies

Fortax year 2008, an amended assessment order has been passed under section 122{5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 by the Additional
Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR} against which the company filed an appeal with Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals-ll who passed an
order with certain amendments. In pursuance of such order, Company filed an appeal in 2011 before Appellate Tribunal and matter is pending

for hearing.
182 Commitments

Commitments under letters of credit as at June 30, 2025 amounted to Rs. 67.50 million (2024: Rs. Ni).

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

EXPORT | LOCAL 1 rgf}u
19. NETSALES 2005 W || s | M || a% 02
Note Rupe
Export SS4217498 485,961,299 - - 554217498 485,961,299
Sales ocal 191 . 654100687 363411414 654,109,687 363,411,414
Export rebates STIL01 54766 - - 5,771,901 5,047,766
559989400  491,009065 654,109,687 363411414  17214,099,087 854,420479
Sales discount [1,099,265) (600,031) 0124 (537,664) (1,291519) (1,137,635
Rebate Commission (109,291) (13447) - {108,21) (13.447)
Inspection Fees (2124564)  (2.764:308) - - (2,124,564) [2,764,308)
BR4I0 (337778 (] 35%537) 3,915,450)
556665250 4870631279 653008463 362873750 _ L205§73713 850505029
19.1 Sales local

Local - - TS0 412312444 TS0 41231244
Others 1314 - - 1376268 13810085 1376268 13,910,085
. LS 46,0158 TWLTS 4621258
Sales tax Local - - 116,651,442 | 60,866,782 116,651,442 60,866,782
Sales tax others 1330146 194,33 133046 1,944,333

117981588 62,811,115 117,981,588 62,811,115

= G006 G G068 MM

19.1.1 Others include scrap sales amounting to Rs. 3,557,871 {2024: Rs. 4,136, 116)
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20. COST OF GOODS SOLD

Raw and packing material consumed

Opening stock
Purchases
Closing stack

Salaries, allowances and benafits
Provident fund contribution
Knitting chargzs

Dyeing and other charges
Embroidery,/ Printing charges
Stitching charges

Fuel and power

Communication

Pastage & telegrams

Repairs and maintenance

Staff welfare and medical expenses
Motar vehicle and conveyance
Insurance

Depraciation

Clezring and forwarding

Freight, octroi and cartage
Expoit development charges
Factory compliance expenses
Commission on Sales Tax refund
Traveling expenses

Reversal of GST refundable

Late Shipment charges

Others

Work-in-process
Opening stock
Closing stack

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods

Opening stock

(losing stock

COST OF GOODS SOLD

46

EXPORT Il LOCAL 1l TOTAL
W5 | wd | s | wk || s | o
Note Rup

RS BSKSB 0000 1567405 1891589 12U
DMOBMUY  MES08E NSO 1AUSTI SIS AIBATESOE
(3,080093)  (087L57) (42015450 (1700017 74096585 {39,291,589)
I7IBTE 292588 28006L5H0 183,604,124 S38LSE 4185995
w09000]  do0mgtd | AeETdE|  ALESMOL 008463 71330715
10905 1145185 1360815 852941 2399871 139,126
6835528| 916108 89554 | 6815 57708 15978289
A9324|  AARET| GG | BTBIEI||  L40B36| 86200814
15963089 | MASS64| 20012850 | 18198755 B899 M43
MIBETL|  BITBETI| 9093918 | GRS || 162412590 | w12
TOUT9| UBLE| 1036570 | 844240 18200400 19,799,121
143,13 187,490 195397 133521 34593 W
499783 454217 65452 300 1154285 9,26
226993 361219 207280 2688038 5,242,199 6300234
167,26 203,81 215,009 151,198 386,35 1437
186355 2539991 4060|180 4304185 4,430,140
471861 B0L657 617,98 i3 1,089844 1049383
513 [ 2emeer| 2388310 34437 | 177780 6,081,504 4,165,387
1380|5199 - - 1362910 8,519,299
86033 | 7SST00| 1108023 | 5623610 19540536 | 13180640
05| 1388178 . - 910520 138,178
971588 4400 1272454 310 2,004,042 653,710
U508 466792 24.9% 1136 749,504 814,158
UL L4685 1078000 927856 1801111 20713
858411 11253 114231 788 1,982,642 194042
SI9677| 462909 E - 5289677 8628083
L7967 2568999 BT L8173% 4142398 4,480,135
TS DRSS D2ES  BL3BI  MSS6  BaSiLIsh
| 94,557,339‘ BT 70‘372,891‘ se,ss7jsas| 164990280 | 105,605,613
(22912041) (456738 (30007366 (70372,891) 52519,607)|  (164940,280)
TLESS148  [BSIGETE) D35 (3ES05Y  UBOWET3  (S9,334667)
SWT0SA0  MSI9MIE  S926d6ES0  BLILAST | LIGALIN 803036640
| 21905 208 16‘513,200‘ 2,5531194” 38,715,426 4,786,033
(20754120)  (2219706)| (7180349 (16513200) |  (47.935068)  (38,715426)
143106 (19974387 (L0GLHS)  (13855.005) Ba9583) (3399392
TGN WG SRRl BILMe | LIGATST  TeI0020
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21, ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES.

B

Salaries, allowances and beneits
Provident fund contribution
Communication

Postage & telegrams

Staff welfare and medical expenses
Motor vehicle and conveyance
Repair and maintenance

Legal and professional charges
Auditors' remuneration
Depreciation

Printing and stationery
Advartisement and publicity

Fee, subscription and periodicals
Rent, rate and taxes

Insurance

others

211 Auditors' Remuneration

Annual audit

Half yearly review

Out of pocket expenses.

Sales tax on audit and review fee

OTHER INCOME

Income From Financial Assets.
Profit on bank accounts

Dividend income-

Exchange Gain/{Loss)

Other Income from Insurance Claim
Gain on disposal of investment - net

Loss on translation of foreign currency debtors

Income From Non-Financial Assets

Gain ondisposal of property, plant and equipment

221 Dividend income

Listed Shares.
Mutual Fund

222 Gain on disposal of investment
FVTPL
Quoted securities
-Mutual funds.

FVTOCH
-Quoted securities

EXPORT I LOCAL 1 TOTAL
Note 205 ] 20 2005 [ o ] 2025 | 2008
9905885 11171694 12973334 8313484 22,879,279 19,485,178
385,364 413,662 504,698 307829 890,062 721,491
256,303 509,241 335,671 378,954 591,974 888,195
7,503 9,288 9,827 £912 17,330 16,200
264,374 192,624 36242 143302 610,616 335,966
1160452 1330514 1519304 990,110 2,680,256 2320624
71,806 133,790 94,002 99,560 165,348 233,350
148,834 194,793 194,923 144,956 343757 319,749
211 278420 291,009 364,636 216571 643,056 507,600
513 2,383,207 2863522 3082569 2,130807 5436276 4,994,429
188,735 212,209 247,180 157,947 435915 370,196
50,368 59,310 79062 44136 139,430 103,446
821,999 1,085,367 1,076543 785,358 1,898,542 1,840,725
15154 249,395 19,846 632,083 35,000 1,481,478
106,857 135,653 139946 100947 246803 236,600
273650 348,30 358,390 259,256 632,040 607,606
6299411 19,770,521 AT 18,7112352 37646184 3AABZETS
2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
368,935 290,500
139,000 100,000
87410 52,500
47,1 34,600
— 848050 507600
926,434 706,310 689,412 706,810 1,615,846
221 - 4,869,123 7,651,112 3623387 7651112 ,492,510
47,605 (6,605,202 - - 47,605 16,605,202)
- - 261,900 - 261,900 -
22 - 208 986 2721312 155,518 2721312 364,504
(15970) (21,632) - - (15,970) (21,632)
- 629,172 28442 468,203 28442 1,087,375
365 (X5 TI3695% 493650

6,084,906
1566,206

6,258,845
2,233,665

898475 370,488
22,837 (5,980)

211312 364,504

284,599 2173
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23, FINANCE COST I ToCAL
o35 o | woss ] o

Fo75 T03E
Mark-upon export refinance: 2,002,663 2,431,448 2622819 1,809,376 4,240,823
Warkupen rwaning finance 445,475 750323 584.733 558,362 1,308,691
Wark-up shart term finance faw material local 2,293,403 - 3,003,591 - -
Wark-up short term finance Soler 58,555 - 76,688 - -
Bank chargas 1,918,507 939,174 3,512,601 698,892 1,638,066
Warkup on finsnce from Twinco 925367 19,589,505 - - 19,589,905
Brokerage and other charges - 10,772 19617 8016 18788
Mark-up on export Discounting 1,269,578 -
Mark-up onshort ten finance loan & Diseounting - 11604280 1,567,430 1,567,430

9,014,543 23,721,628 20,424,301 4,642,076 28,363,703

24. OTHER CHARGES
Warkers' profit participation fund 780,056 751,649 1,861,660 586,610 2,641,716 1,438,259
‘Workers' welfare fund 296,421 285,627 707431 260,911 1,003,852 546,538

1,076,477 {.05’5 76 568,06 521 ,645,° 1,984,

25. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Asegment is a distinguishable camponent of tha company that is engagad in business actiities from which the Company earns revenues and incur expenses and its results are.
ragularly reviewad by the Company's Chief Operating Deeision Maker ta make deelsion abaut rasaurces ta be allocated ta the sagment and assess its perfarmance. Further,
discrete financial information is available for each segment.

Based on internal and produ , the €
- Export
Logal

P into the operating segments

Management menitars the operating results of shove mentioned segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources to be allocated and of assessing
performance.

Segment revenue and segment result for the year are 3¢ follows:

EXPORT I LOCAL 11 ToTAL
2025 I 2024 1T 2025 1 2024 ] 2025 1 2024

Nt sales 556,665,250  487,631279 653908463 362,873,750  1210,573,713 850,505,029
ost of goods sold (522,333,646)  (431.954.300)  (531,983,001) (337,152446)  (1104.217,547)  (769,107.246)
Gross profit AILE0S 55,676,479 TLISE2 | 25,721,304 106,356,166 81,397,782
Administrative and seling expenses (16299411) (19,770,521} (21.346773)  (14712.352) (37,646,184) (34,482,873}
Segment results 18132194 35905958 50577789 11008951 68,709,982 36,914,309
Gther income 31635 6,881 11,369,576 4,936,520 11,201,211 4,943,400
realized gain on 1 i n
o f::\::“ i on revaluation of vestments hed 953,165 3021805 L6 228927 2270983 5270575
Finance cast (0014549)  (23.221628]  (20420301)  (4,542,076) (29,438,850) 128,363,703)
Qther charges 11,076,477} 11,037,276] (2,569,091) 1947,521) 13,645,568] 11,984,797}
Profit before taxation from comtinuing operation 9,055,968 14,175,783 40,241,590 12,604,602 49,267,557 26,780,385
Taxation
- current G165 (876313] B (477,000] 353,318
- prior - (2,82 567) - (2,120,069) {5,109,656)
- Final (434,787) (730,368) (569,126) (s43,507) 1,273,875)
- Deferred (1.224.759) - (1,604,075) - -
(5751411 (8536258 (1L647584)  (7,200577) 118,438,955 T15,736,8451
Profit after taxation frem eontinuing speration T aamiSsE 563516 38594006 SAOA0PS 30858567 TL0ASSH0
2025 2024
26, BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE Rupees Rupees.
Earnings per share - basic and diluted
Profit after taxation 30,858,562 11043581
Number of ordinary shares 9,675,000 9,675,000
Earnings per share P VT
27. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 12 2,646,310 372,247
Running finance focility 15.1 {5.984,005) (5.968,608)
D e —

48



€5 International Knitweat Limited
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REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES
The aggregate amaunt charged in the accounts for remuneration, including all benefits to the Chief executive, Director and Executives of the Company are as
follows

2025 2024
Directors || Chief Executivel| Executives|  Directors || Chief Executive || Executives
Rupees

Basic salary 1,664,516 3870968 5,012,303 1,508,677 3,870,968 1,935,484
Allowances 915488 2129032 2,757,097 830,323 2,129,032 1,064,516
Company's contribution to provident fund 138,710 22581 417,742 25,806 322,581 161,290
Medical expenses 151,576 208,498 35478 125,806 86,487 81545
Bonus 151613 32,581 445161 125,806 322,581 161,290

3,021,899 6.854,660 _ 6,948,381 2.717.418 6,731649 3,404,125
Number of person(s) 1 1 3 1 1 1

281 Asum of Rs. 340,000 (2024: Rs. 300,000) was paid being fee for attending the Board of Directors' meeting.

282 chief executive and Other Executives are provided with free use of Company maintained cars. They are also entitied for medical facility to the extent of
reimbursement of actual expenditure and other benefits in accordance with their terms of employment.

“TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of businese are conducted at commercial terms and conditions. The related parties comprise

staff retirement funds, directors and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties , other than those disclosed elsewhers in these financial
statements, are as follows:

2025 2024
Balances: Note Rupees Rupees
Provident Fund - outstanding balance 161 720,142 655,295
720,141 655,296
Contribution to staff retirement benefit plans 3,289,033 2,720,617
Key management personnel’s remuneration and other benefits 28 18,824,939 12,853,192
29.1. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES
The following information is based an latest un-audited financial statements of fund:
Size of the fund - total assets 20,340,461 17,348,452
Percentage of investment made 47.88% 76.90%
Fair value of investments 9,738,626 13,340,140
Cost of above investments 5819953 5854 &
The breakup of fair value of investment is: 2025 2024 2025 2024
Percentage  Percentage Rupees Rupses
Faysal Islamic Sovereign Plan 1l Fund 13.22% 8.44% 1,287,808 1,126,502
NBP Financial Sector Income Fund 58.22% 36.98% 5,669,467 4933234
UBL Fund 24.11% 51.52% 2,348,455 6,672,354
Investment in Shares 445% 3.06% 432,895 408,050
= 10000% ____100.00% —0.738,626 _ 13340140

International Knitwear Limited Staff Provident Fund halds the investments which are in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act 2017
and the Rules formulated for this purpose.
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50

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalent
Investments

Long term deposits

Trade debts - considered good
Loans and advances

Other receivables

Total Financial Assets

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Short term finance under mark-up arrangement - Secured
Creditors, accrued and other payables

Total Financial Liabilities

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalent

Investments

Long term deposits

Trade debts - considered good

Loans and advances

Other receivables

Total Financial Assets
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Short term finance under mark-up arrangement - Secured
Creditors, accrued and ather payables
Total Financial Liabilities

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Note

As at June 30, 2025
Amount in Rupees
At Amartised FyYTPL Fvtocl Other financial
Cost liabilities
2,646,910 - - -
- 42,614,407 29,907,662 -
1,500,000 - - -
424,314,508 - -
2434605 - -
15,134,331 - - -
446,030,415 42,614,407 29,907,662 -
402,871,536 - -
- - 208,132,871
402,871,536 - 208,132,871
As at June 30, 2024
Amount in Rupees
At Amortised FYTPL FvToct Other financial
Cost __labiies
327,47 - - -
- 32,485,208 28,025,260 -
1,500,000 - - -
53,207,686 - -
1,997,733 - -
25,279,007 - - -
85,256,673 32,485,208 28,025,260 -
142,299,173 - - -
- - - 170,698,762
142,299,173 - - 170,699,762

The Board of Directors of the Company have overall respansibility for the establishment and oversight of Company's risk management framewark, The

Board is also responsible for developing and monitaring the Company's risk management policies,

The Company's activities expose it to a vaiety of liquidity risk, credit risk, and market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk).
Company's averalls risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the

Company's financial performance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party te a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing te discharge an obligation.
The Company's credit risk s primarily attributable to its trade debts and balances at banks. Local credit sales are essentially to Khaadi. Receivable from
export sales are secured against letter of credit. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit
ratings.

) Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents maximum credit exposure, The maximut exposure to credit risk at the date of reparting is as

follows:
2025 2024
NOTE Rupees Rupees
Financial assets:
Trade debts 9 424,314,509 53,207,686
Loans and advances 10 7,258,566 7,167,459
Other recelvables 1 15,134,291 25,279,007

Cash and bank 12

72,247

90,426,399
The trade debts are due from foreign and lacal customers for export and local sales respectively. Majority of the trade debts from foreign customers are
secured against letters of credit. Management assesses the credit quality of local and foreign customers, taking inta account their financial position, past
experience and other factors. For bank balances, financial institutions with strong credit ratings are accepted. Credit risk on bank balances is limited as
these are placed with banks having good credit ratings. Loans to employees are secured against their PF balances.

The bank balances along with credit ratings are tabulated below:

Bank Name Credit Rating.

Bank Al-Habib Limited Ade 3,675,516 4,407,286
Habib Bank L Ale 40,133 15,115
Bank Alfalah Als 31,446 47,596
Dubai Islamic Bank Ads 28,710 29,481
Faysal Bank Limited Als 7,739 72,770
Habib Metropalitan Bank Limited Ads 99,367

3,946,911 4,572,248

The Company always measures the loss allowance for trade debts at an amaunt equal to lifetime FCL using the simplified approach. The expected credit
Iosses on local trade debts are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor's
current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtars, general ecanamic canditions of the industry in which the debtors operate
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. The Company considers a financial asset to be
in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full and it is
subsequently written off, if required.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic and industry factors affect the graup of counter parties whose aggregated credit exposure Is
significant in relation ta the Company's total credit exposure. The Company's financial assets are broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with
diverse credit worthy parties thereby mitigating any significant concentration risk. Therefore, the Company believes that it is not expased to major
concentration of credit risk.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or
the market prices of securities due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply
and demand of securities and liauidity In the market.

Market risk comprises of three types of isk: currency sk, profit rate risk and other price risk.

) Currencyrisk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 2 financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates,
Currency risk arises mainly from future cammercial transactions or recelvables and pavables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

Financial assets include Rs. 155,243,707 {2024 : Rs. 18,701,831) which are subjct to currency risk.
Sensitivity analysis

The 10 parcent strengthening / weakening of Pak Rupee against USD at June 30, 2025 would have (decreasad) / increased profit and loss by Rs.
15,524,371 (2024: Rs. 1,820,183) accordingly. This analysls assumes that all other variables remain constant.
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@) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk represents the risk that are fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company has no long term interest bearing financial assets and liabilities whose fair value or future cash flows will fluctuste
because of changes in market interest rates.
However, Gompany do possess short term interest bearing financial liabilities which includes Rs. 402,871,536 (2024: Rs. 142,299,171) which are
subject to interast rate risk. Applicable interest rate far financial instrumants have bean indicsted in respective notes.
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Company daes not account for any fixed rate financial assets and labilities at fair value through of profit or lass. Therefore, a change in
interest rate at the reporting date would not affect the statement of profit or loss,

Ccash y analysi; rate i

A change of 100 basis points in KIBOR / SBP Base Rate, financial liabilities at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity and
profit or loss by Rs, 4.02 million (2024: Rs. 1,42 millian). This analysis assumes that all ather varlables remaln constant. The analysis is performed
on the same basis as in previous year.

Other price risk

Price risk represent the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, ar factors affecting all similar financial Instrument traded in the market,

313 uuuldnv Risk

Liuidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting abligations associated with finandial lisbllities. The Campany manages
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents. The following are the contractual maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities:
I

uidity risk by

== ii i
Financial assets:
Long term deposics - - E E E 1500000 15500,000 1.500,000
Investments. - - . 42,614,407 29,307,662 72,522,069 72,522,069
Trade debts - - E - aamases < aaa1as08 424314508
Other racoivables . - - . 15,134,391 15130391 15134381
Cash and bank balances  9.50% - 19.00% 2835177 g 2,935,177 939,994 539,994 387,171
2535177 . 2035177  a83003301 31407662 514410963 | 517,346,140
Financial liabilities:
Shart term finance under 3 Months KIBOR
marluparangement  12.5% & SOP rate
1% 402,871,536 - 402,871,536 - - - 402,871,536
Creditors, accrued  and - E - 08132871 208132671 208132871
other payables
Unclaimed dwidend - E E 251,803 251,823 251181
2871 - 2871 = I P ~ei3stezso
‘Sensitivity gap - (399,936.359) - [(392.935,359) 272,358,605 31407,662 303,766,267 (96.170,090]
[ P T e [Feie T e |
Financial assets:
Long term deposits - - - - - 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Long term investments - - E 32485208 28025260  G0510468 60510468
Trade debts - - . . 53,207,686 . 53,207,686 53,207,686
Other receivables - - . 25,279,007 25,279,007 25,279,007
Cash and bank balances - 20.50% 3.802,721 - 3,802,721 388,032 - 388,089 4,100,753
3,802,721 . 3,802,721 111,358,933 25,525,260 140,885,193 144,687,914
Financial liabilities:
o B der 3 Months KIBOR
0L LM Nance under ) cor o spprate 142,299,173 - 142,299,173 - - - 142,209,173
mark up arrangement
+1%
Creditors, accrusd and other payables - E - 10609762 170693762 170,699,762
Unclaimed dividend - . . 2,298,013 . 2,298,013 2,298,013
12299175 T awasin _imssigns — iserris  sisasesi
Sensitivity gap (138,496,453) T (3%a05,053)  (61,637,841) 29,535,260 (323,112,581)  {170,609,034)
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31.4 Capital Risk Management

32

The objective of the Company when managing capital, i.e., its shareholders' equity, is to safeguard its ability to continue as a gaing
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong
capital base to support the sustained development of its businesses.

The capital structure of the Company is equity based. It has financed all its projects and business expansions thraugh equity
financing and never resorted on debt financing. However, the Company has availed short-term borrowing for working capital

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal
(or most ad us) market at the date under current market conditions {i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue.

As at June 30, 2025, all financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost except for investment in mutual funds
and equity securities which are carried at their fair values.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived frem prices)

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {that is, unobservable inputs)

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the

transfer has occurred. The Company's policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have occurred includes
manitoring of the following factors:

« changes in market and trading activity (e.g. significant increases / decreases in activity)
« changes in inputs used in valuation techniques {e.g. inputs becoming / ceasing to be abservable in the market)

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year. The valuation techniques used are as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on Net Asset Values (NAVs) of the units of the mutual funds
and share prices for equity securities at the reporting date. A market is regarded as active when it is a market in which transactions
for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an on going basis.

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy of the Company's financial assets (by class) measured at fair value at
June 30, 2025:

2025
Financial Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Investments: Fair Value through profit and loss 72,522,069 - - 72,522,069
2024
Financial Assets Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Financial Investments: Fair Value through profit and lass 60,510,468 - - 60,510,468
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33,

35.

36.

37.

38.
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2025 2024
PRODUCTION CAPACITY
Installed capacity (Pcs.) 1300000 _ 1,300,000
Actual praduction (Pcs.) 744,369 749,825

It is difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in the textile industry since it fluctuates widely depending on various
factors such as count of yarn spun, raw material used, etc.

Reasons for shortfall

The short fall in actual production during the year when compared with installed capacity is mainly due to planned maintenance
shutdown and gap between market demand and supply.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employees as on the date of financial statements: 280 298
- Factory employees 148 168
- Other emplayees 132 130

Average number of employees during the year: 280 288
- Factory employees 150 158
- Other employees 130 130

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and authorized for issue on September 29,
2025.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 28, 2025 has proposed a final cash dividend of Rs 1.0 per share
amounting to Rs 9,675,000 (2024: Rs. 0.75 per share amounting to Rs. 7,256,250). The approval of the shareholders of the
Company shall be obtained at the upcoming Annual General Meeting for the year ended June 30, 2025,

The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025 do not include the effect of the proposed final cash dividend.
Corresponding figures

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better presentation and
camparison. However no significant reclassification has been made during the year.

FIGURES

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest of Rupee, unless otherwise stated.

) e

KHALID JAMIL SIDDIQI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director / CFO



Intetnational Knitwear Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per thefollowing:

Male: & (Six)
Female: 1 (One)

The composition of board is asfollows:

Category Name

Executive Directors Mr.Naeem Shafi
Mr.Javed Khan

Non-Executive Directors Mr.Waseem Shafi
Mr.Muhammad Shafi

Independent Directors Mr. Khalid Jamil Siddiqi
Mr. Abdullah Ahsan Saleem
Ms. Saleha Majid

Female Director Ms.Saleha Majid

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company.

The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and some
significant policies of the Company. The board has ensured that complete record of particulars of
the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the
Company.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Boardforth is purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the
Company Act, 2017 and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating
minutes of meeting of the Board.
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9.

10.

11

12,

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

Four directors are Certified Director and two directors meet the criteria of exemption and are
accordingly exempted from directors’ training program. Remaining Director will acquire the
required directors’ training certification within the time specified in the Regulations.

The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, including
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the regulations.Mr. Salik Sultan was appointed as Company secretary during the
year;

The position of Head of Internal Audit remained vacant during the year

Chief Financial Officer and Chief executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

Mr. Abdullah Ahsan Saleem Chairman Independent Director

Mr. Khalid Jamil Siddigi Member Independent Director

Ms. Saleha Majid Member Independent Director
HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Khalid Jamil Siddiqi Chairman Independent Director

Mr. Naeem Shafi Member Executive Directors

Mr. Javed Khan Member Executive Directors

13

15,

16

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

Committee Frequency
Board of Audit Committee Quarterly
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee Yearly

The Board has not yet setup an internal audit function as required by Regulation 31 of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of
the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit,
company secretary or director of the company;
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have cbserved IFAC guidelines in this
regard.

18.  We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with; and

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8,27,32,33
and 36 are below.

1. The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee set-up by the company, is not in line
with the composition required by regulation 28(1) the Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2018,

The Board will reconstitute the HR & Remuneration Committee to ensure compliance with
Regulation 28 in the shortest possible timeframe

2. The Board has not setup an internal audit function as required by regulations 31 of the

Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.
The Company will setup the Internal Audit Function and will hire head of Internal Audit as
required by the Regulation 31 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 as soon as the cash flow allows to bear an additional cost.
KHALID JAMIL SIDDIQI NAEEM SHAFI
Karachi: September 29,2025 Chairman Chief Executive
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED " {k e
REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES $07,Progeesiv ez, aumont Road
{CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 Karachi, 75530-Pokistan

T 4920211 356559756
F+32(2713565-5977

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors
of International Knitwear Limited for the year ended June 30, 2025in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with these Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and
risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions
by the Board of Directors upan recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, except for the above instance(s) of non-compliance, nothing has come to
our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not
appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements
contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the

Regulations as reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the statement of
Compliance.
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RSM Avals Hyder Liaguat Nauman

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED Chantered Accouatants
REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

S. Nature of
No Requirement

Paragraph
Reference

Description of the Non-Compliance

i Explanatory

The Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee set-up by the company, is not in line
with the compaosition required by regulation
28(1)the Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019.

ii. Explanatory

15 & 19())

The Board has not setup an internal audit function
as required by regulations 31 of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019.

11T %MTM

Chartered Accountants

Karachi.
Date: October 01, 2025

UDIN:CR202510239MNuRB8A6g
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International Knitwear Limited

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is here by given that the 35" Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held
on Monday, October 27, 2025, at 03:30 p.m. at F- 2A / L, S.T.E, Karachi, to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Annual Financial Statements of the
Company together with Director’s and Auditor’s Reports for the year ended June 30,
2025.

As required under Section 223 of the Companies Act 2017 and in terms of S.R.0 No.
389(1)/2023 datedMarch 21, 2023, the Annual Report, including the Notice of Meeting
and Financial Statements of theCompany has been transmitted to the shareholders
and uploaded on the website of the Company which can be viewed using the following
link or QR enable code:

https://iil.com.pk/en/page/investors/financial-information

2. To declare and approve the final cash dividend @ 10% i.e. PKR 1.0 per share,as
recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended June 30, 2025.

3. To appoint statutory Auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30,
2026. The retiring Auditors, M/s. RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman, Chartered
Accountants, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

4. To transact any other ordinary business which may legally be transacted at an Annual
General Meeting, with the permission of the Chair.
By Order of the Board

Karachi, October 06, 2025 -
! ’ Salik Sultan

Company Secretary
NOTES:

1. CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from October 20, 2025, to October 27, 2025
{both days inclusive) for the purpose of the AGM and payment of the Final Cash dividend.

Transfer requests received by CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”,
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400. Tel: 0800-23275, UAN: 111-111-500, Email:
info@cdcsrsl.com, at the close of business on October 19, 2025, will be treated in time for the
purpose of determining the above entitlement to the transferees for payment of cash dividend
and to attend the AGM.
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2. PARTICIPATION IN THE AGM VIA THE VIDEO CONFERENCING FACILITY:

The shareholders can now participate in the AGM proceedings via video link. Thase members who
are willing to attend and participate in the AGM via video link are requested to register
themselves by sending an email along with the following particulars and a valid copy of both sides
of CNIC at javed@internationalknitwear.com with the subject of ‘Registration for AGM’ not less
than 48 hours before the time of the meeting:

Name of Shareholder CNIC No. Falio No./CDC Mobile No. | Email Address
Account No.

Members who are registered after the necessary verification, as outlined above, will receive a
password-protected video link via email from the Company to ensure compliance with quorum
requirements. The link will be active from 3:20 p.m. on the day of the AGM until the meeting
concludes.

3. ATTENDING AGM AND APPOINTMENT OF PROXY

A. A Member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to
appointanother member as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf.

B. An instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority under which it
is signed, or a notarised, certified copy of the power or authority, must be deposited at the
registered office of theCompany at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting. Form of Proxy is
enclosed.

€. CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down in
Circularl dated January 26, 2000, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

i) For Attending AGM

a. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose securities and their
registrationdetails are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall produce proof of his / her identity by
showing theirComputerized National Identity Card (CNIC) at the time of attending the meeting.

b. In case of a corporate entity, a Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signatureof the nominee shall be produced {unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the
Meeting.

ii) For Appointing Proxy

a. In the case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose registration details
areuploaded as per CDC regulations shall submit the Proxy Form as per the above requirement.

b. Attested copies of the CNIC of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the
ProxyForm. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC at the time of the meeting.
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4.

7.

Mandatory Information (Email, CNIC, IBAN and Zakat Declaration)

A. In compliance with Section 119 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 19
Companies (GeneralProvisions and Forms) Regulations, 2018 members are
requested to immediately provide theirmandatory information such as CNIC
number, updated mailing address, email, contactmobile/telephone number and
International Bank Account Number (IBAN) together with a copy of theirCNIC to
update our records and to avoid any non-compliance of the law. Otherwise, all
dividends will bewithheld in terms of Regulation 6 of the Companies (Distribution
of Dividends) Regulations, 2017;

e  For physical shares to M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
e For shares in CDS to CDC Investors A/c Services or respective participant

B. Members are requested to submit a declaration (CZ-50) as per Zakat & Ushr
Ordinance 1980 for zakatexemption and advise an address change, if any.

E-Dividend

As per Section 242 of the Act it is mandatory for the public listed companies to pay cash
dividends to its shareholders only through electronic mode, directly into a bank account
designated by the entitled shareholders.

Therefore, through this notice, all shareholders are requested to update their bank account
No. (IBAN) and details in the Central Depository System through respective participants. In
case of physical shares, provide bank account details to our Share Registrar, M/s CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited. Please ensure a nearly update of your particulars to avoid any
inconvenience. The e-Dividend mandate form is enclosed.

Unclaimed Dividends and Bonus Shares

Shareholders, who for any reason could not claim their dividend and/or bonus shares, are
advised to contact our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, to
collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividends and /or bonus shares if any.

Filer and Non-Filer Status

i) The Government of Pakistan, through the Finance Act, 2025, in Section 150 of the Income Tax

Ordinance,2001, prescribed the following rates for withholding tax against dividend
payments by the companies;

a) For filers of income tax returns — 15%

b) For non-filers of income tax returns — 30%

Members whose hames are not entered into the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) provided by the
FBRwebsite, although they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered
into the ATL toavoid higher tax deductions against dividends.
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ii)

For any query/problem/information, the investors may contact the Share Registrar at the
following phone numbers or email addresses:

M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-
Faisal, Karachi Customer Support Service No's: +92-080023275 E-mail :info@cdcsrsl.com

iii} Corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Number

63

(NTN) updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders
should send a copy of their NTN certificate to the Share Registrar, i.e., M/s CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited. Theshareholders, while sending NTN or NTN certificates, as the
case may be, must quote the company name and their respective folio number.

Conversion of Physical Shares into Book-Entry Form

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, all existing companies are required to convert
their physical shares into book-entry form within a period not exceeding four years from the
date of commencement of the Companies Act, 2017,

The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, through its circular # CSD/ED/Misc./2016-
639-640 dated March 26, 2021, has advised the listed companies to pursue their members
who still hold shares in physical form to convert their shares into book-entry form.

We hereby request all such members of International Industries Limited who are holding
shares in physical form to convert their shares into book-entry form at the earliest. They are
also suggested to contact theCentral Depository Company of Pakistan Limited or any active
member/stock broker of the Pakistan Stock Exchange to open an account in the Central
Depository System to facilitate the conversion of physical shares into book-entry form.
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2025 |

| # Of shareholders | Shareholdings'Slab | Total hares Held |
334 1 to 100 8,928
243 101 to 500 63,019
623 501 to 1000 353,191
111 1001 to 5000 264,459
36 5001 to 10000 288,217
9 10001 to 15000 109,553
8 15001 to 20000 142,310
8 20001 to 25000 182,537
2 25001 to 30000 55,398
2 35001 to 40000 79,468
1 40001 to 45000 43,500
1 45001 to 50000 49,718
1 50001 to 55000 53,750
2 65001 to 70000 130,141
1 130001 to 135000 132,225
1 200001 to 205000 200,258
1 365001 to 370000 368,571
2 420001 to 425000 850,000
1 425001 to 430000 430,000
1 550001 to 555000 552,612
1 640001 to 645000 641,694
1 830001 to 835000 832,153
1 950001 to 955000 951,815
1 970001 to 975000 972,400
1 1915001 to 1920000 1,919,083
1393 9,675,000
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders  Shares Held Percentage
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse(s) and minor children
WASEEM A SHAFI 4 74,912 077
HUMAIRA SHAFI 2 972,500 10.05
BUSHRA SHAFI 2 7,870 0.08
NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 2 1,918,120 19.84
[SALEHA MAJID 1 750 0.01
KHALID JAMIL SIDDIQ! 1 18,600 0.19
ABDULLAH AHSAN SALEEM 1 10,000 0.10
MUHAMMAD SHAFI 1 425,000 439
JAVED KHAN 1 8,089 0.08
|Associated Cq i Jertakings and related parties -
NIT & ICP
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Financial Institutions, 1 67 0.00
Insurance Companies -
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 1 40,000 041
[General Public
a. Local 1357 5,213,203 53.88
b. Foreign S 72,855 075
Foreign Companies - - -
Others 10 912,034 9.43
Totals 1393 9,675,000 100.00
Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage
HUMAIRA SHAFI 972,500 10.05
NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 1,915,120 19.84
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

SNo. Folio Name of Number of shares | Percentage
1 1 WASEEM A SHAFI 39,468 0.41
z 02 WASEEM A SHAFI 3.765 0.0a
3 03277-39281  WASEEM ASHAFI 7.679 0.08
a 03277-122587  WASEEM A SHAFI 24,000 0.25
s HUMAIRA SHAFI 100 0.00
6 03277-97487  HUMAIRA SHAFI 972,400 10,05
7 BUSHRA SHAFI 3870 0.0a
s 03277-124739  BUSHRA SHAF| 2,000 0.0a
s NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 37 0.00
10 03377-44659  NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 1,919,083 19.84
11 SALEHA MAJID 750 001
12 01826-48207  KHALID JAMIL SIDDIQI 18,600 0.19
13 03377-38584  ABDULLAH AHSAN SALEEM 0.10
14 05512-111016  MUHAMMAD SHAFI a3s
15 10629-283781  JAVED KHAN 0.08
15 3552
Assoeiated 1 and related parties
it -
o B .
NITE IR
il -
° = -
Banks Einancial Non Financial
1 0388928 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 67 0.00
1 o7 0.00
Insurance Companiss
1 il -
o - -
Modarahas and Mutual Funds
0211321 EIRST EQUITY MODARABA 40,000 041
1 40,000 0.41
1 03277-110081  MUHAMMAD NADEEM 1,000 001
2 03277-114373  MUDASSAR ZULFIQAR 500 001
3 03277-117504  SHAHMID ALl 65,100 0.67
a 03277-120358  MUHAMMAD AYUB. 6,000 0.06
s 03277-123268  DANISH ALI KHAN 34 0.00
6 03277-129227  HUSSNAIN TARIQ 1 0.00
7 03277-130525  GULNAR HASSAN 100 0.00
= 03277-135012  IMRAN 110 0.00
s 03277-135836  _AZIM SAEED 10 0.00
£} 72.855 0.75
For i
it -
o - -
Others
1 2976 THE COMPANY SECRETARY 472 0.00
2 021133611 First UBL Modaraba Staff Provident Fund 3,750 0na
3 03277-78335  TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND 10,893 0.11
4 03277-82127  TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BENEVOLENT FUND TRUST 382 0.00
s 03277-128497  UDL INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 832,153 850
6 043413265 RAO SYSTEMS (PVT) LTD, 22,822 0.22
7 05728-24 STGEK STREET (PRIVATE] LIMITED a7 0.01
S 05736-15 NCC - PRE SETTLEMENT DELIVERY ACCOUNT 125 0.00
B 16857-26 MRA SECURITIES LIMITED - MF 22,500 0.23
10 16885-22 MOHAMMAD MUNIR MOHAMMAD AHMED KHANANI SECURITIES LTD. - MF 18,400 0.9
10 912,034 9.43
General Public Local 1357 5,213,203 53.88
Total 1393 9,675,000 100.00
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E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

To:
Subject: Bank account detail for payment of Dividend through electronic mode.
Dear Sir,

I, Mr./Mrs./Ms.
s/o,/bfo,w/o

hereby authorize International Knitwear Limited to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if any, in the
below mentioned bank account.

(i) Shareholder’s Detail

Name of the Shareholder

Folio No./CDC Participants ID A/C No.

CNIC No. **

Passport No. (in case of foreign Shareholder)***

Land Line Phone Number

Cell Number

(i) Shareholder's Bank Detail
Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Bank 's Name
Branch Name and Address

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and that | will intimate the changes in the
above mentioned information to the Company and the concerned Share Registrar as soon as these occur.

Sighature of the Shareholder

Notes:
The Shareholders having physical shares have to address the Compeny Secretary IKL on the address given below

The Company Secratary
International Kritwear Limited

FRALSITE

Karachi

and Shareholders having their accounts with CDC'sh ser

Limited have to o

“**Plese attach attestad photocopy of the CNIC.
“**Please attach attestad photocopy of the Passport






International Knitwear Limited

FORM OF PROXY
35th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

T/'We on/daugt wife/husband of . Shareholder of

International Knitwear Limited, holding —— ordinary shares hereby appoint

who is my. [state relationship (if any) with the proxy; required by Government

regulations] and the son / daughter / wife / husband of , (holding
ordinary shares in the Company under FolioNo. — ) [required by Government] as my
/ our proxy. to attend and vote for me /us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of

the Company to be held on October 27th, 2025 and / or any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2025.
Folio CDC Participant CDC Account/ No. of
No. 1D No. Sub-Account No. Shares held
Signature over
Revenue Stamp
Rs.10/-
‘Witness 1 ‘Witness 2
Signature Signature
Name Name
CNIC No CNIC No.
Address Address

Notes: 1.  The proxy must be a member of the Company.

2. Thesignature must tally with the specimen signature/s registered with the company.

3. Ifaproxyis granted by a member who has deposited his/her shares in CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited , the proxy must be accompanied with
participant’s ID number and CDC account/sub-account number along with attasted
photocopies of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or the Passport of the
beneficial owner. Representatives of corperate members should bring the usual
documents required for such purpose.

4. The instrument of Proxy properly completed should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company net less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.







International Knitwear Limited
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International Knitwear Limited
F-2A0, S.I.TE., Karachi-75730 Pakistan
Phones: 32571463, 32574302-04
Fax: (021) 32664414
Web : www.Infemnationalknitwear.com



